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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSG6 REVI EW REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
YFY Inc.

Introducti on

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of YFY Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred t o 30a2022tahde202ftler relatga O ) as
consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the threeremthanths ended September

30, 2022 and 2021the consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the nine
months ended September ZM22 and2021, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of sfigaint accounting policies. Management is responsible for

the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordamee with t
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and Iné&rnation
Accounting Standard 34 #dAlnterim Financi al Rep
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. i@gponsibility is to express a
conclusion on the consolidated financial statements based orviawse

Scope of Review

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our reviews in accordance with
St atement of Au di t Revigyw ofSRinancial énforchation NPerformedl Dy thie

I ndependent Audi tor o f nsdiidated fikanctali statgroents cansistseof i e w
making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analyticaland other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an
audit and consequenttjoes not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do rpesx an audit

opinion.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

As disclosed in Notes4land b to the cosolidated financial statements, the financial statements of
some norsignificant subsidiaries and investments accounted for using the equity method included
in the consolidated financial statements referred to in the first paragraph were not reviewed. As o
September 3@022 and 2021the combined total assets of these-sigmificant subsidiaries were
NT$34,054,38%housand andNT$28,295,623thousand, respéeely, representing4% and 21%,
respectively, of the consolidated total assets, and the comltoted liabilities of these
nonsignificant subsidiaries were [$10,045,139 thousand andNT$9,233,062 thousand,
respectively, representinti% and 13%, respeiively, of the @nsolidated total liabilities; for the
three and nine months ended September ZR2 and 2021 the amounts of combined
comprehensive income of these reignificant subsidiaries were a gain of $863,590thousand,

a gain ofNT$647,361thowsand, a gain of N¥1,634,331thousand and a gain &fT$1,124,131
thousand, respectively, represegt 7%, 31%, 21% and14%, respectively, of the consolidated
total comprehensive income. As of September 2822 and 2021the carrying amounts of the
abovemertioned investments accotadl for using the equity method were $1B0,577thousand
andNT$168,309thousand, respectively; for the three and nine months ended Septemd@230,
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and 2021 the amounts of comprehensive income (loss) of investments accdantesing the
equity method were loss of NT$3,821 thousand and #ss of NT$14,087 thousand, doss of
NT$19,338thousand and gain of NT$21,620thousand, respectively.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our reviews, except for the adjustments, if anyigist have been determined to be
necesary had the financial statements of the 4sanificant subidiaries and investments
accounted for using the equity method as described in the preceding paragraph been reviewed,
nothing has come to our attention thas caused us to believe that the acpanying consolidated
financial statements do ngiresent faly, in all material respectsthe consolidated financial
position of the Group as @eptember 302022 and 2021lits consolidated financial performance

for the three months ended September 2022 and 2021 and its consolidated financial
performance ahconsolidated cash flows for the nine months ended Septemh2023Dand 2021

in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financiait®Rlep Securities

Issuers and Internatin a | Accounting Standard 3ndlorsédlandt er i m
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

The engagement partners on the reviews resulting intieggnn d ent audi t or sd r ev.
Chih-Ming ShacandHui-Min Huang

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

November 11, 2022

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to phesemsdidated
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with atiogurinciples

and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practicesréview such consolidated financial statements are
those generally applied in the Republic of Ghin

For the convenience of reader s, the independer
consolidated financial statements have been translated Eniglish fom the original Chinese

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If therayiscanflict between the English

version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions,

the Chinesdanguage inlepemlentaudt or s® revi ew report and consol
shall prevalil.



YFY INC. AN D SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands ofNew TaiwanDollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Tauche review eport datel November 11, 2022
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September30, 2022 December 312021 September30, 2021
(Reviewed) (Audited) (Reviewed)
ASSETS Amount % Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETSNote 4)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 9,419,988 7 6,534,090 5 7,000,571 5
Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 7) 1,167,703 1 3,026,461 2 2,731,412 2
Current finarcial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Notes ¢
and 32) 8,228,024 6 7,675,476 6 6,596,574 5
Current financial assets at amortized cost (Note 9) 2,472,484 2 4,352,267 3 4,250,4% 3
Notes receivable, net (Notes 10, 22 and 33) 2,777,214 2 4,431,191 3 4,498,784 3
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 10 and 22) 13,114,759 9 13,002,096 10 11,677,863 9
Accounts receivable due from raddtpartiespet (Notes 22 and 32) 54,603 - 71,403 - 65,738 -
Current inventories (Note 11) 11,814,691 8 11,705,050 9 11,308,330 9
Current biological assets (Note 12) 3,353,409 2 3,193,535 2 3,222,568 2
Prepayments 1,874,953 1 1,504,008 1 1,997,752 2
Disposal group classified as held for sale (Note 13) - - - - 56,558 -
Other current financial assets (Note 33) 910,648 1 345076 - 372475 -
Other current assets, others (Note 32) 882,424 1 692,009 1 759,748 1
Total current assets 56,070,900 40 56,622,662 42 54,539,019 41
NON-CURRENT ASSETS (Note 4)
Non-current financial assets fatir value through other comprehensive income (Note
and 32) 17,860,902 15,919,513 12 15,222,414 12
Non-current financial assets at artized cos(Note 9) 1,542,825 1 434,148 - 429,426 -
Investments accounted for using equitytinoel (Note 15) 7,014,549 5 6,102,801 4 5,617,689 4
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 16 and 33) 48,978,09 5 48,402,268 35 48,147,913 36
Right-of-use assets (Notes 17 and 33) 2,120,637 1 2,037,520 2 1,939,430 2
Investmant property, net (Notes 18 and 32) 3,988,355 3 3,532,991 3 3,542,767 3
Goodwill 538,380 470,573 - 473,452 -
Deferred tax assets 316,870 - 351,334 - 320,322 -
Prepayments for business facilities (Note 16) 1,118,612 1 1,519,458 1 1,346,028 1
Net defned benefitsset, norturrent (Note 20) 801,936 1 710,988 1 511,547 1
Other noncurrent assets, others (Note 33) 309,540 - 330,008 - 340,079 -
Total norcurrent assets 84,590815 79,811,602 58 77,891,067 59
TOTAL ASSETS $ 140,661,715 $ 136,434,264 100 $ 132,430,086 100
LIABILI TIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES (Note 4)
Current borrowings (Notes 19 and 33) 9,639,792 7 $ 10,079,552 8 $ 11,113,775 8
Shortterm notes and bills payable (Note 19) 11,018,218 8 9,296,157 7 13,865,010 11
Currentfinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 7 and 31) 23,664 69,687 - 46,116 -
Current contract liabilities (Note 22) 504,306 - 516,177 - 550,162 -
Notes and accounts pdyja 11,201,540 8 12,225,726 9 11,441,783 9
Accounts payable to related parties (Note 32) 112,819 - 57,012 - 70,693 -
Other payables,tbers (Note 16) 3,999,848 3 4,377,129 3 4,081,138 3
Curren tax liabilities 609,496 1 1,437,612 1 1,244,494 1
Current lease liabilities (Note 17) 200,680 - 177,846 - 153,038 -
Liabilities related to disposal group clasdifias held for sale (Note 13) - - - 4,331 -
Long-term liabilities, current portion (Notes 19 and 33) 300,000 - 57,933 - 800,000 1
Other current liabilities, others (Note 32) 1,458,974 1,221,889 1 1,172,539 1
Total current liabilities 39,069,337 39,516,720 29 44,543,079 34
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (Note 4)
Non-current portion of norturrent borrowings (Notek9 and 33) 26,401,705 26,519,989 20 20,647,973 16
Deferred tax liabilities 3,610,923 3,603,758 3 3,586,250 3
Non-current lease liabilities (Note 17) 509,894 471,777 - 397,310 -
Net defned benefit liability, norcurrent (Note 20) 39,662 37,233 - 44,292 -
Other noncurrent liabilities, others 434,331 478,655 - 387,600 -
Total norcurrent liabiities 30,996,515 31,111,412 23 25,063,425 19
Total liabilities 70,065,852 70,628,132 52 69,606,504 53
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERSOF PARENT(Notes 4, 13, 21, 26 and 29)
Share capital 16,603,715 16,603,715 12 16,603,715 12
Capital surplus 3,468,619 3,288,518 2 3,250,210 2
Retained earnings 22,842,352 22,919,766 17 22,162,476 17
Other equity interest 12,827,329 8,389,401 6 6,385,153 5
Total equity attributable to owners of parent 55,742,015 51,201,400 37 48,401554 36
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 14,853,848 14,604,732 11 14,422,028 11
Total equity 70,595,863 65,806,132 48 62,823,582 47
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 140,661,715 $ 136,434,264 100 $ 132,430,086 100



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning®er Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

For the Three Months EndedSeptember30 For the Nine Months Ended September30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE
(Notes 4, 22 and 32)
Net sales revenue $ 17,847,395 87 $ 15,864,820 80 $ 52,441,494 87 $ 50,739,793 80
Otheroperating revenue, net 2,557,122 13 3,921,586 20 7,844,788 13 12,911,320 20
Total operating revenue 20,404,517 100 19,786,406 100 60,286,282 100 63,651113 100
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 11
23 and 32)
Cost of sales 15,761,569 77 13,596,902 69 45,617,604 75 41,494,350 65
Other operating costs 1,922,739 10 2,380,489 12 5,946,361 10 7,290,254 11
Total operating costs 17,684,308 87 15,977,391 81 51,563,965 5 48,784,604 76

GAIN (LOSS) ON CHANGES
IN FAIR VALUE LESS
COSTS TO SELL OF
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

(Notes 4 and 12) (149 - 698 - (970 - 2,848 -
GROSS PROFIT FROM
OPERATIONS 2,720,195 13 3,809,713 19 8,721,347 15 14,869,357 24
OPERATING EXPENSES
(Notes 23 and 32)
Selling expenses 1,437,530 7 1,343,727 7 4,296,025 7 4,249,474 7
Administrative expenses 971,588 4 982,422 5 2,812,796 5 2,886,567 4
Research and development
expenses 159,159 1 135,263 1 459,838 1 482,709 1
Totd operating expenses 2,568,277 12 2461412 13 7,568,659 13 7,618,750 12
NET OPERATING INCOME 151,918 1 1,348,301 6 1,152,688 2 7,259,607 12

NON-OPERATING INCOME
AND EXPENSES
Finance costs, net (Notes 4
and 23) (249,769 (@) (142,319 Q) (578,579 ) (404,480 (@)
Share of profiof associates
accounted for using equity

method, net (Notes 4 and 1 682,801 3 190,001 1 1,289,308 2 742,607 1
Interest income 80,640 - 27,917 - 165594 - 82,622
Rent income (Notes 1&d 32) 15,411 - 16,205 - 40,938 - 65,338 -
Dividend income 941,973 5 872,739 4 990,379 2 909,264 1
Other income, others (Note 2' 137,500 1 129,738 1 304,934 1 371,685 1

Gains (bsses) on disposal of
property, plant and

equipment (1,946 - 7,418 - 2,490 - 26,195 -
Gains on disposal of
investment property 28 - - - 133,442 - - -

Gains (losses) ofinancial
assets oliabilities at fair
valuethrough profit or loss

(Note 4) 498,458 2 (27,160 - 906,038 2 (93,270 -
Miscellaneous disbursements (9,917 - (21,313 - (29,579 - (39,279 -
Foreign exchiage losses

(Note 36) (402,723 (2) (68889 _ - (935,093 (2) (172,719 -

Total nonoperating
income and expenses 1692452 _ 8 984,342 5 2289874 _ 4 1487972 _ 2
(Continued)



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning®er Share)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

For the Three Months EndedSeptember30

For the Nine Months EndedSeptember30

2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX $ 1,844,370 9 $ 2,332,643 11 $ 3,442,562 6 $ 8,738,5P 14
TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 2: (130,754 1) (411,123 (2) (640,725 1) (1,787,80}) (3)
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 1,713,616 8 1921522 _ 9 2801837 __ 5 6,950,778 _ 11
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) (Note 4)
Components of other
comprehensive income (los
that will not be reclasfied
to profit or loss:
Unrealized gains (losses)
from investments in equit
instruments measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 469,112 2 354,272 2 2,170,509 3 1,894,562 3
Share of other
comprehensive income
(loss) of associates
accounted for using equi
method 73,510 1 (47,455 - (44,489 - 261,979 -
Components of other
comprehensive income (los
that will be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Exchange diffeences on
translation 1,218,193 6 (82,219 @) 2,587,311 4 (687,140 1)
Gains on hedging
instruments - - - - - - 5,199 -
Share of other
comprehensive income
(loss)of associates
accoungd for using equity
method 47,050 - (75,06 __ - 200,903 1 (208,182 -
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net 1,807,865 _ 9 149532 _ 1 491423 _ 8 1,266,419 _ 2
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME $ 3521481 17 $ 2,071,054 _ 10 $ 7,716,072 _ 13 $ 8217197 _ 13
PROFIT, ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Profit, attributable to owners ¢
parent $ 1462,015 7 $ 1,300,930 6 $ 2,225,534 4 $ 4,554,958 7
Profit, attributable to
non-controlling interests 251,601 1 620,592 3 576,303 1 2,395,820 4
$ 1713616 _ 8 $ 1921522 _ 9 $ 2801837 __ 5 $ 6,950,78 _ 11
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Comprehensive ingcoe,
attributable to wners of
parent $ 3,134,128 15 $ 1,480,625 7 $ 6,833,386 11 $ 5,835,386 9
Comprehensive income,
attributable to
non-controlling interests 387353 2 590429 _ 3 882686 2 2381811 _ 4
$ 3521481 17 $ 2,071,054 _ 10 $ 7,716,072 _ 13 $ 8217197 _ 13
(Continued)



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Doallars, Except EarningsPer Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

For the Three Months Ended September30

For the Nine Months Ended September30

2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Note 25)

Basic earnings per share $ 0.88 $ 0.78 $ 134 $ 2.74

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.88 $ 0.78 $ 134 $ 2.74
The accompanying notes areiategral part of theonsoldaedfinancial staements.
(With Deloitte & Touchereviewreport datedovember 11, 2022 (Concluded)



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021
Appropriation of 2020 earnings
Legal reserve appropriated
Cash dividends of dinary share
Cash dividends distributed by subsidiaries
Changes in equity of associates accounted for using equity metha

Other changes inapital surplus

Difference between caitleration and carrying amount of subsidiarie
acquired or disposed

Changs in ownership interests in subsidiaries
Profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2021

Other comprehensive income (loss) floe nine months ended
September 30, 2021

Total comprehensive income (I9ger the rine months ended
September 30, 2021

Disposal of investments in eduiinstruments designated at fair valu
through other comprehensive income (loss)

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2022
Appropriation of 2021 earnings
Legal reserve appropriated
Cash dividends of ordinary share
Reversal of special reserve
Cash dividends distributed by subsidiaries
Changes in equity of associates accounted for using equity methot
Other changes in capitaliplus

Difference between consideration and carrying amount of subsidiz
acquired or disposed

Changes in ownership interests in Sdiaries
Profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2022

Other comprehensive income for the nine montited September 3(
2022

Total comprehensive income for the nine months ended Septemb:
Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair ve
through other comprehsive income (loss)

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Equity Attributable to Ow ners of Parent

Other Equity

Capital Surplus Unrealized
Difference Gains (Losses)
Between on Financial
Consideration Exchange Assets
and Carrying Differences on Measured at Equity
Amount of Changes in Retained Earnings Translation of Fair Value Relatedto
Share Capital Subsidiaries Ownership Unappropriated Foreign Through Other Gains (Losses)  Disposal Group
Shares(In Acquired or Interests in Consolidation Retained Financial Comprehensive on Hedging Classified as Non-controlling

Thousands) Amount Disposed Subsidiaries Excess Other Total Legal Reseve Special Reserve Earnings Total Statements Income Instruments Held for Sale Total Interests Total Equity
1,660,372 $ 16,603,715 $ 1,560,211 $ 445,695 $ 293,124 $ 205,164 $ 2,504,194 $ 3,822,784 $ 4,001,813 $ 12,931,484 $ 20,756,081 $ (1,509,009 $ 6,633,307 $ (3,025 $ - $ 44,985,265 $ 13,302,734 $ 58,287,999

- - - - - - - 606,583 - (606,583 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - (2,490,553 (2,490,557 - - - - (2,490,553 - (2,490,553
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (869,623 (869,623
- - - - - (16,405 (16,405 - - 961 961 - (2,712 - - (18,156 (7,134 (25,290
- - - - - (64) (64) - - - - - - - - (64) - (64)
- - 195,852 - - - 195,852 - - (687,609 (687,609 5 (1,001 - - (492,748 (1,032,083 (1,524,83)
- - - 566,633 - - 566,633 - - 26 26 15,795 (26) - - 582,428 646,323 1,228,751
- - - - - - - - - 4,554,958 4,554,958 - - - - 4,554,958 2,395,820 6,950,778
- - - - - - - - - - - (749,599 2,026,366 3,025 636 1,280,428 (14,009 1,266,419
- - - - - - - - - 4,554,958 4,554,958 (749,599 2,026,366 3,025 636 5,835,386 2,381,811 8,217,197

- - - - - - - - - 28,611 28,611 - (28,611) - - - - -
1,660,372 $ 16,603,715 $ 1,756,063 $ 1,012,328 $ 293,124 $ 188,695 $ 3,2%,210 $ 4,429,367 $ 4,001,813 $ 13,731,296 $ 22,162,476 $ (2,242,809 $ 8,627,323 $ - $ 636 $ 48,401,554 $ 14,422,028 $ 62,823,582
1,660,372 $ 16,603,715 $ 1,778,263 $ 1,023,27 $ 293,124 $ 193,204 $ 3,288,518 $ 4,429,367 $ 4,000,001 $ 14,490,398 $ 22,919,766 $ (2,185,619 $ 10,575,017 $ - $ - $ 51,201,400 $ 14,604,732 $ 65,806,132

- - - - - - - 465,605 - (465,609 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - (2,490,559 (2,490,557% - - - - (2,490,559 - (2,490,557

- - - - - - - - (4,981 4,981 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (1,330,949 (1,330,949

- - - - - 60,917 60,917 - - (11,243 (11,243) 370 - - - 50,044 2,350 52,394
- - - - - (26) (26) - - - - - - - - (26) - (26)

- - 85,492 - - - 85,492 - - - - 36,905 - - - 122,397 586,200 708,597
- - - 33,718 - - 33,718 - - (1,806) (1,806 (6,541) - - - 25,371 108,824 134,195
- - - - - - - - - 2,225,534 2,225,534 - - - - 2,225,534 576,303 2,801,837
- - - - - - - - - - - 2,472,547 2,135,305 - - 4,607,852 306,383 4,914,235
- - - - - - - - - 2,225,534 2,225,534 2,472547 2,135,305 - - 6,833,386 882,686 7,716,072

- - - - - - - - - 200,658 200,658 - (200,658 - - - - -
1,660,372 $ 16,603,715 $ 1,863,755 $ 1,057,645 $ 293124 $ 254,095 $ 3,468,619 $ 4,894,972 $ 3,995,020 $ 13,952,360 $ 22,842,352 $ 317,665 $ 12,509,664 $ - $ - $ 55,742015 $ 14,853,848 $ 70,595,863

The accompanying notes are an integral pltieconsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Toucheeviewreport datedNovember 11, 2022




YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands of NewTaiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES, INDIRECT
METHOD
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Expected credit gain

Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilitiega@t value through

profit or loss
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Sharebased payments

Share of profit of asociates accounted for using equity method

Gain ondisposal ofproperty, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment property

Loss on disposal of investments

Write-downs of inventories (reversed)
Unrealized éreign exchange loss

Loss (gain) arising from changes in fair value less costs to sell

biological assets
Gain from leas modification
Gain from derecognition of subsidiary (Note 27)
Changes in operating assets and liabsit

Decrease in current financial assets at fair value through profit

loss, mandatorily measured at fa#ue
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable, net
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable, net

Decrease in accounts receivable due from related parties, net

Decrease (increase) in current inventories
Decrease (increase) in current biological assets
Increase in prepayments
Decrease (increase) in other currenetsothers
Decrease in financial liabilities held foadiing
Decrease in current contract liabilities
Increase (decreasi) notes and accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable to related parties
Decrease in other payable, others
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities, others
Decrase in net defined benefit liability, naurrent
Cashinflow generated from operations
Interest received

For the Nine Months Ended

September30
2022 2021

$ 3,442,562 $ 8,738,579
3,232,066 3,134,430
(22,967 (2,098
(906,038 93,270
578,578 404,480
(165,594 (82,623
(990,379 (909,264
9,131 7,692
(1,289,308 (742,607
(2,490 (26,195

(133,442 -
- 8,733
18,077 (4,128
1,038,379 441,479
970 (2,848
(48) (2
- (34,372
3,032,290 237,095
1,948,492 (1,175,226
841,347 (82,449
16,80 32,445
265,538 (2,379,23%
(64,397 54,347
(274,310 (4,168
477,770 (316,177
(244,425 (466,567
(42,715 (1,093
(2,157,607 1,490,297
55,807 (15,267
(520,730 (211,649
(302,845 89,341
(88,519 (437,145
7,751,993 7,839,088
167,185 83,778

(Continued)



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited

Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows generated from operating ati&s

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other
comprédiensive incora

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at faurevthrough other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets at fair value th
other comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of (acquisition of) financial assets at amo
cost

Disposal of financial assets for hedging

Proceeds from liquidation of investments accounted for using eqt
method

Derecogition of subsidiaries (Note 27)

Proceeds tim disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of propemjant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment padies

Increase in other financial assets

Decrease (increase) in other pamrent assets, others

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in current borrowings
Increase in shotierm notes andills payable
Proceeds from (repayment of) loteym delb
Payments of lease liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other rmnrent liabilities, others
Cash dividends paid
Change in nortontroling interests
Overdue dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

For the Nine Months Ended

September30
2022 2021

$ 1,581,326 $ 1,328,102
(572979 (396,908
(1,637,344 (1,670,863
7,290,181 7,183,197
(416,527 (75,472
116,452 185,524

- 64,254
803,273 (1,954,467

- 5,303
- 140,887

- (230

- (133
(3,031,584 (4,129,167
16,354 50,218

222,983 -
(492,725 (350,369
(55,247 93,76l
(2,837,02) (5,980,897
(670,369 4,549,357
1,722,061 4,466,196
122,546 (5,628,277
(167,533 (139,650
(76,860 39,640
(2,490,557 (2,490,557
(439,206 (1,167,349
(26) (32
(1,999,944 (370,673

(Continued)



YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited

For the Nine Months Ended

September30
2022 2021
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH ANCASH
EQUIVALENTS $ 432,682 $ (79,219
NET INCREASE IN CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS 2,885,898 763,418
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
PERIOD 6,534,090 6,283,121

CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD $ 9,419,988 $ 7,046,539

Reconciliation of he amounts in the consolidated statements of cash figlivghe equivalent items reported in
the consolideed balance sheeas atSeptembeB0, 202 and 202.

Septemler 30
2022 2021
Cash and ah equivalents in the consolidated balancetshee $ 9,419988 $ 7,000,571
Cash and cash equivalents imb¢d indisposal grouglassified as held
for sale 45,968

Cash and cash equivalentsie ttonstidated statements of cash flows $ 9,419,988 $ 7,046,539

The accompanyingates are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche review repodatedNovember 11, 20292 (Concluded)
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Ddars, Unless StatedOtherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

YFY Inc. (the iCompanyd) was incorporated in Kaohsiung in February 198 Compangs shares have
been Isted on the Taiwan Sto&kxchangg TWSE) sinceFebruary 1977.

The Company was origittg principally engagedn the manufacture and sale of paper and pageted
products and the design, manufacture and sale of equipMenhcreae its sales and contizeness, the
Companycarried out a restructing of the organization and spaff of its specialized divisios. The
Company spun off the assets, liabilities, and ajmers of its consumer products and packaging segnents
its sulsidiaries, Yuen Foonyu Consumer Products Ca.td., in October 200and YFY Packaging Inc., in
September @05.

In addition, the Cmpany spun off the assets, liabilities and operationssgfaper and cardboard business
segment to Chung Hwaupp Corporgion (CHPQ and acquied the shares issued BHPC on October 1,
2012 After this transaction, CHPC becamesubsidiary of the Companand the Company became an
investment holding company jtlv investment as its main business.

The consolidatefinancial statements of the Corapy and its subsidiariegereto forth collectiely referred

to as the Group, are pegged in the Compai@y functional currency, the New Taiwan dollar.

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial séements wex approved by the Corapyés board of directoren November
11, 2022.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
a. Initial application of thenternational FhancialReporting StandarddFRS), International Acounting
Standards(IAS), IFRIC Interpretations(IFRIC), and SIC Interpetations (SIC) (collectively, the
AIFRS) endbrsed and issued into effect by the Finah&upervisory CommissiairSO

The initial application of the IFRSs endorsed and issued gifect by the FSC did not have any
material impact on th&roupds accouating policies.

b. The IFRSs endorsed by th8€ for application starting froi2023

Effective Date

New IFRSs Announced by IASB
Amendments to IAS TiDisclosure of Accounting Hicieso January 1, 202(Note J)
Amendmentgo IAS 8fiDefinition of Accounting Estimatés January 1, 202@ote 2
Amendments to IAS 18DeferredTax related to Assetnd January 1, 202@ote 3

Liabilities arising from a Sigle Transadabno

Note I The amedments will be applied prospectively for annugdarting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023.
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Note 2 The amendments are ajgalble to changes ircaounting estimates and changesdoounting
policies that occur on or after the begmmiof tte annual reporting period beginning on or
after dnuary 1, 2023.

Note 3 Except for deferred taxes thaewerecognized on January 2022 for temporary diffeences
associated with leases an@cammissioning obligations, the amendmentsexe applied
prospetively to transactions that occur on or aftemuday 1, 2022.

As of the date the consolidated financial stapts wee auhorized for issue, the Group is
continuously asessing the possibimpact that the application abovestandirds and interpretations
will have on the Grougs financial positiorand financial performance and will disclose the relevant
impactwhen theasgssment is completed.

c. New IFRSs in issue buot yet endorsed arnssued into effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB(Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 18ndIAS 28MSale or Contribution of Assets To be determined by I3B
between An Investaand ItsAssaciate or Joint Ventuce

Amendments to IFR$6 fiLeases Liability in a Sale and leaseliack January 1, 202Note 2

IFRS 17flnsurance Contraads Januay 1, 2023

Amendmentsd IFRS 17 January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 1finitial Application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Compaative Informatiot

Amendments to IAS fiClassification of Liabilities as Current or January 1, 202
Non-currend

Amendments to IAS BiNon-current Liabilities with Covenanis January 1, @24

Note I Unless stated otherwise, the above IFRSs are effediivanhual reporting pesds beginning
on or after their respective effidve dates.

Note2: A sellerlessee slil apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of [ERS

As of the date the consolidated financial stapts wee auhorized for issue, the Group is
continuouslyassessing the possible impact that the applicatia@bofestandrds and intgretations
will have on the Grous financial position and finaral performance and will disclose the relevant
impactwhen theas®ssmenhis completed.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Statement otompliance
These interim consolated financial statements have b@eepared in accordance with tRegulations
Governing the Pregrationof Financial Reports by Secués Issuers and IAS 3dnterim Financial
Reporting as endorsed and issued intoeeff by the FSC. Disclosure infornt included in these

interim conslidated financial statements issk than the disclosure infoation reuired in a complete
set of anoal consolidated financial statements.
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b. Basis of preparation

The consolidated fiancial statements have been pregaon the historical cost basiscept for
financial instruments wikbh are measured at fair vald®ological asset¢excluding bearer phtg which
are measured at fair valuesdecosts to sell, net defined benefit lidlgs (assetswhich are measureat
the present value of the defthdenefit obligation less the favalue of plan assets, investments
accainted fa using the equity mbabd and the lower of cost or net realimatalue on inventories.

The fair value measuremesntwhich are grouped intcevels 1 to 3 on the basis of tHegree to which
the fair value masurement inputs are observable and significance of the inputs tthe fair value
measurement in its entiygtare described as follows

1) Level 1 inputs arguoted pricegunadjusteflin active markets for identicabsets or liabilities.

2) Level2inputs are inputs other than quotedtes induded within Level 1hat are observable for an
asset or liabity, either directlyi.e., as pricesor indirectly(i.e., derived from pricg); and

3) Levd 3 inputs are unaservable inputs for an assetli@bility.
c. Basis of consolidation

The consbidated financial st@ments incorporate the financial statetseof the Company and the
entities controlled by th€Eompany(i.e., its subsidries.

Income and expenses diibsidiaries acquired or disposefl during the period are included in the
consoldated statements of wprehensive income from the effective elaf acquisitions or up to the
effective date of digosals, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are entw the financial statements alibsidiaries to bring their
accounting pliciesinto line with those sed by the Company.

All intra-group trasactions, balances, income and expenses are eladii@atfull upon consolidain.
Total comprehensive income efibsidiaries is attributed toegtowners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even ihis results in the neoontrolling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Grodp ownership interests imgsidiaries that do not resulttine Group losing control
over thesubsidiaries are accounted for as eguiansations. The carryingraouns of the Grougs
interests and theon-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect ¢hanges in their relativiaterests in
the subsidiaries. Anglifference between the amount Wwhich the norcontrolling interests aradjustel
and the fair valuefahe consideration paid or receivedéognized directly in equity and attributed to
the avners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a sidiary, a gain or loss is recoiged in profit or loss and is
calculatedas thedifference betweefi) the aggregate of the fair value of tensideration received and
any investment retained the former subsidiary diis fair value at the date whenrgml is lost and(ii)
the shareof the assetgincluding any goodwi)l less lialfities and any nofcontrolling interests of the
former subsidary at the date when control is lost. The Group aetfor all amounts recaged in
other comprehensive incain relation to that subsidiamgn the same basis as would be requifetie
Group had directly dispmed of the related assets or liabilities

The fair value of any investment retained in tbarfer subsidiary at the tawhen control is lost is
regardé as the fair value on initiakcognition of an investment in an assdeiar financial assets.

Referto Note14 and Tables8 and9 for moreinformation on subsidiariggncluding the percenge of
ownership and maibusinesg
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d. Other significantccounting policies

Except for thefollowing, please refer to the consaltdd firancial statementsof the year ended
December 312021.

1) Retirement benefits

Pension cost for an interim periasl calculated on a weto-date basis by using the aatally
determined pension cost ratetiae end of the prior financial yeadjustedfor significant narket
fluctuations since that time and for sijcant plan amendments, settlements, or othemifiggnt
oneoff evens.

2) Taxation

Income tax expergepresents the sum of the tax cuthgpayable and deferred tax. Interirarjpd
income taxes are asssed on an annual basis and calculated blyiagpto an interim perio@
pre-tax income the tarate that would be gticable to expected total annusirnings.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JU DGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the appliciion of the Groufs accounting policies, managent is required to make judgments,
estimations ath assumption®n the carrying amount of assets anabiiities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates amgocited assumptions @mbased on historical experience and other
factoristhat are considered relevant. Actual resuléy miffer from thesesimates.

The Group considerthe possible impact dhe recent developme of the COVID 19 and the economic
environmentimplications when making its critical accounting estimaiasash flow projections, growth
rate, discount rate, plitability, etc. The estimates and underlying assumptions ai@ared on an ongoing
basis.Revisions to accounting estimates are recogdin the geriod in which the estimates are revised if
the revisims affectonly that period or in the period of thevisionand future periods if the revisions affect
both currentand future periods.

For the summary of critical accounting judgmentsdakey sourca of estimation uncertainty, refer to the
consolidatedihancial statements for the year ended Decembet(21,

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 30, December 31, September 3,

2022 2021 2021
Cash on hand $ 1913 $ 17,244 $ 33,443
Checking accounts and demand deposits 5,508,168 4,313,350 4,922,053
Cash equivalents
Time deposits 3,773,377 2,005,996 1,894,075
Repurchase agreamts colateralized by bond 119,307 197,500 151,000

$ 9,419,988 $ 6,534,000 $ 7,000571
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUME NTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2022 2021 2021

Financial assets at FVTRLcurrent

Financial assets maridaily classified as at
FVTPL
Derivative financial asset®ot under hedge
accounting
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 483,132 $ 3,555 $ 524
Currencyexchangecontracts - 237 -
Non-derivative financial assets
Mutual funds 430,688 1,516,27 1,287,737
Hybrid finarcial assets
Structureddeposits 253,883 1,505,742 1,443,151

$ 1,167703 $ 3,0%,461 $ 2,731,412

Finartial liabilities at FVTPL- current

Financial liabilities heldor trading
Derivative financial liabilitiegnot under hedge

accounting
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 23,664 $ 69,687 $ 45,343
Currency exchange contracts - - 773

$ 23,664 $ 69,687 $ 46,116

At the end of the reporting pedp outsanding foreign extange forward contracts not wrdhedge
accounting wer as follows

Notional Amount

Currency Maturity Date (In Thousandg
September 30, 2@2
Buy USD:RMB 202210.282023.06.21 uSD48,900
Buy USD:NTD 20221024-20221031 USD1,500
Buy JPY:USD 202210.27 JPY 200,000
Sell USD:NTD 202210.07202210.27 uSD40,000
Sell RMB:USD 202210.202023.09.25 RMB2,056,18
Sell EURNTD 20221003-202210.26 EUR14,000
December 31, 2a?
Buy USD:RMB 2022.01.18202203.28 USD35,000
Buy JPY:USD 202201.20 JPY220,000
Sell USD:NTD 2022.0103-202201.27 USD9,900
Sell RMB:USD 20220110-2022.03.24 RMB2,365,814
Sell EURNTD 20220126 EUR1,000

(Continued
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Notional Amount

Currency Maturity Date (In Thousandg
Sepgember 30, 2021
Buy USD:RMB 2021.10.18-2021.12.28 USD39,000
Buy USD:NTD 202111.30 USD3,000
Buy JPY:USD 2021.11.04 JPY220000
Sell USD:NTD 2021.10.012021.11.01 UsD22,300
Sell RMB:USD 2021.10.1202201.12 RMB2,304,535
(Concludedl

The Group entered into foreign exclganforward comracts to manage exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations offoreign currency denominated assets kakiilities.

At the end of the reporting period, outstanding currency exchangeactsnhot under hedgeccounting
were as follows

Notional Amount

Currency Maturity Date (In Thousands

December 31, 202

Currency exchange otacts USDINTD 2022.02.17 USD2,000/NTL65,620
September 32021
Currency exchage contracts USD:NTD 2022.02.17 USD15,000/NTD417,150

The Group entered into currency exchamgntracts to manage exposures to exchange rateations @
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities.

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(FVTOCI)

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2022 2021 2021
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
current

Domestic investments

Listed shags $ 8228024 $ 7,675,476 $ 6,596,574

Investments irequity instruments at FVTOCI
non-current

Domestic investments

Listed share $ 12,127032 $ 11,073719 $ 10,157,120
Unlisted shares 5,623,52 4,711,909 4,920,268
17,750,564 15,7%,628 15,077388

Foreign investments
Unlisted shags 110,338 133,885 145,026

$ 17,860,902 $ 15919513 $ 15,222,414
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10.

The Group inested i listed and unlisted on domestic or foreign equity secudiieselected to degigte
these nvestments h equity instuments astaFVTOCI.

FINANC IAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

September30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021

Current
Time deposits with original matities of more

than 3 months and not exclgg 1 year $ 2,472,484 $ 4,135,193 $ 4,035,743
Time deposits with original maturities of more

than 1 year - 217074 21478

$ 2,472,484 $ 4,352,267 $ 4,250,456

Non-current

Time deposits wit original maturities of more
than 1 year $ 1,542,825 $ 434,148 $ 429,426

The ranges of interest rates for tirdeposits with original ntarities of more than 3 months and not
exceeding 1 year wefe680-2.206, 0.18%2.10% and0.18%2.10% as ofSeptember 8, 2022, Decendy
31,2021 and September 30, 2021

The ranges of interest rates for time deposits with origimaturities of more than 1 year were
3.1846-3.99%0, 3.96%63.99% and 3.96%-3.99% as of September 30, 2022December 31, 2021 and
Septenber 30, 2021

NOTES RECEIVABLE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Septenber 30, December 31, Septembe 30,

2022 2021 2021
Notes receivable
Notes receiviale $ 2,777979 $ 4,431,956 $ 4,501,549
Less Allowance for impairmenloss (765 (765 (2,760)

$ 2777214 $ 4431191 $ 4,498,784

Accouns receival#

Accounts receable $ 13,386,625 $ 13,381,480 $ 11,873354
Less Allowance for impairmenloss (271,8®) (289,389 (195,49}

$ 13,114759 $ 13,092,096 $ 11,677,863

Notes receivable and accoungseivable were generated by operatingvaies.

The Group revdws the recoverdd anounts at the end of the reporting periodetwure that adeaiate
allowance is made for possible irrecoverable amounts.
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The Group measures the loss allowance for tradeivables at an amount equal to lifetiB€Ls. The
expected crdtllosses on tragl re@ivables are estimated using a provisionrinapproachcorsidering the
past default experience of the debtor and atyaisaof the debtds current financial posin, adjusted for
general economic conditisnof the industry in wich the debtors aateand an assessment of both the
current as wi¢ as the faecasted direction of economic conditions at the reporting datethe Groufs
historical credit loss experiea does not show significantly differentsk patterns for differércustomer
segmets, the provision for loss allowance based ort plae statuss not further distinguished according to
the Groujds differentcustomer base.

September 30, 2@2

Less than 90

Not PastDue Days 91 to 180 Days 181to 360 Days Over 361 Days Total
Gross carrying amount $ 15013260 $ 805031 $ 121,288 % 16324 $ 208701 $ 16,164,604
Loss allowancéLifetime
ECL9 (48687) (4,573 (7,649 (3,645 (208.07) (272631)
Amortized cost $ 14,964,58 $ 800458 $ 113,63 $ 12,679 $ 624 $ 15,891,973

December 31, 202

Less than 90

Not Past Due Days 91 t0180 Days 181 to 360 Day: Over 361 Days Total
Gross carrying amount $ 16443,657 $ 874272 $ 217322 $ 46,840 $ 231345 $ 17,813,436
Loss allowancéLifetime
ECLy) (14,809) (14,044 (25,972) (4,080 (231,249 (290,149
Amortized cost $ 16428848 $ 860228 $ 191,350 $ 42,760 $ 101 $ 17,523,287

Segember 30, 2021

Less than 90

Not PastDue Days 91to 180 Dag 181 to 360 Day: Over 361 Days Total
Gross carrying ammt $ 15323201 $ 784996 $ 134,458 3 7895 $ 124353 $ 16,374,903
Loss allowancéLifetime
ECL9 (42,482 (5,175) (23733 (2,981) (123,885) (198,256
Amortized cost $ 15280719 $ 779821 $ 110725 $ 4914 $ 468 $ 16,176,647

The movemats of theloss allowance of trade receivables waseollows

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
Balance at January 1 $ 290,149 $ 430,271
Less Net remeaurement of loss allowance (22,967) (2,099
Less Amounts written off (2,770 (227,496
Effect of foreign curency exchangedifferences 8,220 (2,42)
Balance at Sgember 30 $ 272,631 $ 198,256

For the nine moths endedSeptembeB0, 2022 and 2021the Group discounted a portion itd bankeds
acceptance bills in mainland Chinatlw an aggrega carryng amoumt of $2,097,080thousand and
$907,410thousand. Foinformation on the transfer dihancial instrumery refer to Note31.

The carryingamountof notes receivable pledged @dlateralwas disclosed iNote 33.
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11. INVENTORIES

Septanber 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Materials $ 5528656 $ 5581,643 $ 5,465,226
Finished and prchased goods 5,084,056 5,190,371 4,925,289
Work-in-process 1,201979 933036 917,815

$ 1184691 $ 11,705,050 $ 11,308,38
The cost of goods soltbr the three and nine months ended Septemberr@82 and 2024included
inventory writedowns of$2,447thousandand$18,077 thousandnventory writedowns$64,23 thousand

andinvertory write-downsrever®d of $4,128thousandrespectively. Previous wrigowns were reersed
asa result of increasestlling prices.

12. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
Balance at Jamary 1 $ 3,193535 $ 3,327,526
Increases due to plang 256630 141,585
Gain(losg on changes in fair vae less cds tosell (970) 2,848
Decreases due to harvesting (192,233 (195,932
Effect of foreign curency exhange diferences 96,447 (53,269
Balance at September 30 $ 3,353,409 $ 3,222,758

The biological assetand theirfair values measued on a recurring bas{®efore deducting costs to ell
wereas follows

September 30, Deaember 31, Sepgember 3Q

2022 2021 2021
EucalyptugLevel 3 $ 3,462,043 $ 3,295,021 $ 3,329,231

The movements in the faiale of the assets within Level 3 of the hierarchy weréolows

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
Balarce at Jauary 1 $ 3,295,021 $ 3,437,755
Increases due to planting 273,092 147,070
Gain(losg on changen fair value less costs to sell (1,032 2,958
Decreases due to harvesting (204,564 (203520)
Effects of foreigncurrencyexchange di#rencs 99,526 (55032
Balance at September 30 $ 3,462,043 $ 3,309,231
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13.

14,

The financial risks related tobiological assetsarose from the estimation of eucalyp volume since the
method used in estimation igghly uncetain.

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD F OR SALE

On September 3, 2021, the boafdlirectors of he ssidiary, San Ying Enterprise Co.,d.t re®lved to
dispose of alits ownership of Kunshan Actview Carbon Techmgyl€Co., Ltd. Thecortract wassigned in
October 2021 with an estimated amount of RMB28,194 thousand. The Group ¢gpmntplete thesale
within 12 months. Thus, the assets, lialglit and equity attriieble to Kunshan Actview Carbon
Technology Co., td. were reclas$ied as hdd for sale and were presented separately in the consolidated
balance shds for the nine ranths ended Ségmber30, 2021. The sales proceeds substantiadeeded

the carrying amunt of the related net assets and, accordimglyimpairment leseswere ecgnized after
remeasurement at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less csaits The major tassa of assets,
liabilities, and equity oKunshan Actview Carbon Teciology Co., Ltdwhich wereclassified as held fo

sale were aflows:

Kunshan

Actview

Carbon

Technology Co.
Ltd.

Cash $ 45,968
Accounts receivable, he 4,518
Other curent assets, others 7
Property, plant and eqpment 3,566
Right-of-use assets 2,499
Disposal grouglassifiel asheld for sde $ 56,558
Accounts payable $ 17
Other payables, others 13
Other currentiabilities, others 6
Other norcurrent liabilities, others 4,295
Liabilities related tadisposal grouglassified as held for sale $ 4331
Equity related tadisposal grouglassified as held for sale $ 636

The Group compgted the disposal irDecember202l and lost control of Kunshan Actview Carbon
Tecmology Co., Ltd The sales procels of RMB18,707 thousandvere fully collected irlanuary2022.

SUBSIDIARIES

a. Subsidiariesricluded in the consolidated financial stateméfds the diagram ofnivestment structure
of the Group as at Septéer 30 2022, refer to Table t

Proportion of Ownership (%)
September30, December 31, September 30,
Investor Investee Main Business 2022 2021 2021 Remark

YFY Inc. Chung Hva PulpCorporation Pup and paper production, tiad and forestry business 57.8 57.8 57.8 1)

YFY International B.V. Investmat and lolding 100.0 1000 100.0 1)
YFY GlobalInvestment B.V. Investment and holding 100.0 100.0 100.0
Yuen Fomg Yu Consumer Products Co., Ltd. Productionand sale of hig quality paper and 59.1 59.1 591 1) and15)
papetrelated merchandise
ShinFoong SpecialtgndApplied Materials Cq. Production and selof SBR(styrene butadiene rubber 48.0 48.0 48.0 1) and2)
Ltd. latex
China Color Printing Co., Ltd. Design and printingfanagazines, posters and bsok 49.7 49.7 49.7 2)
Effion Enertech Coltd. To gperate cogeneration and progidower technology 100.0 49.0 490 20)
(Continued

- 20 -



Investor

YFY Inc.

YFY International B.V.

YFY Mauritius Corp.

YFY PackagingYangzhol
Investmet Co., Ltd.

YFY Paper Ergrprise(Kunshar
Co, Ltd.
YFY Cayman Co. Ltd.

WinsongPackaging Investment
Company Limited
Willpower Industres Ltd.

Yuen FoongYu Peper Enerprise
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd.

YFY Jupiter(BVI) Inc.

YFY Jupiter US, Inc.

Mobius105 Ltd.

YFY Jupiter(ShenzhehLtd.

JupiterPrestige Group Hdings
Limited

Jupiter Prestige Group Holdings
Limited

Jupter Presige Graip Norh
America Inc.

JupiterPrestige Goup Europe
Limited

Opal BPM Limited

YFY Paper Enterprise
(GuangzhoyCo., Ltd.

YFY Paper Enterprés(Xiamen)
Co., Ltd.

YFY Packaging Inc.

YFY Globd Investment B.V.

Arizon RAD Tedhnology
(Caynan) Co., Ltd.
YFY RFID Co. Limited

Investee

YFY Development Corp.

YFY Corporate Advisory & Services Co., Ltd.
Union Raper Corp.

YFY Paradign Investment Co., Ltd.

San Ying Enteprise Co., Ltd.

YFY Japan Co., Ltd.
Yuen Yan Paper Container Co., Ltd.
Fidelis IT SdutionsCo., Ltd.

Sustaimble Carbohydrate Innovation Co., Ltd.
YFY Packagingic.

Guangdong Dingfung Pulp aper Co., Ltd.
Zhaoqing Dimgfung Faestry Co., Ltd.

Hwa Fong PapefHong Kong Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Mfg.(Jiang/in) Co., Ltd.
Yuen Foong Yu BlueEconomy Natural Resourct
(Yangzhoy Co., Ltd.
YFY Biopulp Technology Limited
YFY Mauritius Corp.
YFY Packagng (Yangzhoy) Investment Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris¢Fuzhoy Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris@iaxing Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhoy Co, Ltd.
YFY Paper EnterpriséQingdag Co., Ltd.
YFY Parer Enteprise(Kunshan Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris€ZhongshapCo.,Ltd.
YFY Paper EnterprisgGuangzholCo., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris¢Dongguarn Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris€Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris¢Suzhol Co,, Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpriséiamer) Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Entergse (Shangha) Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper EnterpriséNanjing Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Mfg.(Yangzhoy Co., Ltd.
YFY PaperEnterprise(Qingdaq Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpriségkunshar Co., Ltd.
YFY PaperEnterprise(ZhongshahCo., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpres(Guangzho)Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Ergrprise(Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris€Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper Enterpris¢Suzhoy Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper EnterprisgXiamer) Co.,Ltd.
YFY PaperEnterprisg(ShanghgiCo., Ltd.
YFY Pape Enterprise(Nanjing Co., Ltd.
YFY Paper EnterpriséNanjing Co., Ltd.

YFY Intemational Labuan Co., Ltd.

YFY PackagingCapital Corp.

WinsongPackaging Investmed@ompanyLimited

Willpower Industries._td.

YFYPack Advance Ltd.

YFY Padaging(Ha Nan) Co., Ltd.

YFY Packagingrhai Binh Co., Ltd.

Yuen Foong YwPaperEnterprise(Vietnam) Binh
Duong Co., Ltd.

Yuen Foong Yu Paper Enterprigéetnam) Co.,
Ltd.

Yuen Foong Yu Bper Enerprise(Vietnan) Binh
Chanh Co., Ltd.

Yuen Foong Yi Paper Enteprise(Dong Na) Co.,
Ltd

Mobius105 ltd.

YFY Jupiter Limited

Jupiter Prestige Group Holdinganited

YFY Jupiter US, Inc.

YFY Jupiter Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

YFY Jupiterindonesia, PT PMA

YFY Jupiter Mexico, S. de R.L.

Spectiv Brands, LLC

YFY Jupter (ShenzhepLtd.

YFY JupiterMalaysia Sdn. Bhd.

YFY Jupiter Mexto, S. de R.L.

YFY Jupiter Indonesia, PPMA

JupiterVietnam Conpany Limited

Kunshan YFY Juper Gree Packagig Ltd.

YFY Jupiter Supply Chain Management Servic
(ShenzhepLimited

Jupter Prestige Group Europe Limited

Jupiter PrestigGroupAustralia Pty Ltd.
OpalBPM Limited

Jupiter Prestige Gup North America In.
Contrast LLC

Jupite PrestigeGroup Asia Limited

Opal BPM hdia Private Limited
Opal BPMConsulting Limited
Kunshan YFY Advertising and Printing C.td.

Kunshan YFY Advertisig and Printing Co., Ltd.

YFY PackagingBVI) Corp.
PekCrownPape Co., Ltd.

YFY CaymarCo., Ltd.

Avrizon RFID Technology(Caymar) Co.,, Ltd.
YFY RFID Co. Limited

YFY Jupiter(BVI) Inc.

YFY RFID Technologies Co., Ltd.

YFY RFID Co. Limited

Arizon RFID Technolgy Co., Ltd.

Arizon RFID Technolog (Cayman) Co., Ltd.

Main Business

Real estate investmemddevelopment

Consulting

Manufacture and sale of paper

Investment and holding

Design and construction of veatprocessing and
environmenal fadlities

Tradeof paper, chemical matied and machinery

Sde andmanufacture of corrugated paper and mialer

a. Provides services in informatisoftwae and
information procesing.

b. Wholesale of information saftare and electric
appiances.

Researching andeveloment

Praductionand saleof high-quality craft paper and
corrugated paper

Pup and paper mduction andrading business

Seedlng cultivation and sales, reforestation,
salescumforest logging and other forestry,geessing
and transportion

Sale and print of paper mehandise

Manufadure, sale angrint of cardboard and paper

Technologial devéopment of agriculiral resource
recycling

Investment ad holding

Invegment and holding

Investmenand hading

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture ad sale é paper and cardboard

Manufacture and sale of paper

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture and $a of pperand cardboard

Manufacture and sale of perand cardboard

Manufactue and sale of pzer and cardboard

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture andgale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture and sale paper and cardboard

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture and sale of paper azdchoard

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufactue ani sale of pape

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture and sale of paperd cadboard

Manuacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufactureandsale of papeand cardboard

Manufactire and sale of paper éoardboard

Manufactue and sale of paper andrdboard

Manufacture and sale of paper aactiboard

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture andade ofpape and carboad

Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Manufacture ad saleof paper and cardboard

Investment and holding

Investment and holding

Investment and holding

Sale of various paper products
Investmen@and holding

Manufactureand sale opaper ad cardboard
Manufacture and sale paperand cardbard
Manufactue and sale opaper andardboard

Manufacture and sale of paper and baatd
Manufacture and sale of cardboard
Manufacture and sale of paper and cardboard

Investment and holihg

Design of packagig and sale of paper
Investment and ding

Desin of packaging and sald paper
Design of packaging arsale of @per
Design of packaing

Designof packaging and sale of paper
General trade

Desdgn of packagng andsale of paper
Design of packaging and sale of paper
Design of packaging and sale of paper
Design of packaging

Design of packaging

Design of packaging and sale of paper
Design of pakaging and sale qfaper

Graphic design

Grephic design

Design ofprocess sstem and ssistance in graphic
design

Design of packagingnd sale of paper

Brand Design

Graphic design

Workflow system @ding
Consulting servicesf workflow system coding
Design and print of advegemets

Design and print of advésements

Investment ad holding
Manufacture and salof containers
Investment and holding
Investment and holding
Investmen@and holding
Investment and holding
Investment and holding
Investment and holding

Sale andlesign of RFI(radiofrequency identification

products
Investment and holding
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Proportion of Ownership (%)

September 30, December 31,  September 30,
2022 2021 2021 Remark
100.0 100.0 100.0 4)
100.0 100.0 100.0
189 18.9 18.9 2)
100.0 100.0 100.0 1)
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
50.9 509 509
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0 1) and 4
40.0 40.0 40.0
135 13.5 13.5
100.0 100.0 1000
94.0 94.0 940
100.0 1000 100.0
60.0 60.0 60.0
100.0 100.0 100.0 1)
100.0 100.0 100.0 3)
100.0 1000 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
- - 64.6 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 938 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 100.0 3)
- - 90.0 3)
100.0 100.0 35.4 3)
100.0 1000 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
93.8 93.8 - 3)
1000 100.0 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
100.0 100.0 - 3)
90.0 90.0 - 3)
10.0 10.0 10.0
- 100.0 100.0 21)
- - - 7
70.0 70.0 70.0
100.0 100.0 100.0 12)
- 100.0 100.0 9)
1000 1000 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
58.3 583 583 8)
100.0 100.0 100.0
99.0 99.0 99.0
1.0 1.0 1.0
1.0 1.0 1.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
1.0 1.0 1.0
99.0 99.0 99.0
99.0 99.0 99.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
1000 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
825 82,5 825
1000 100.0 100.0
80.0 80.0 80.0 10
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0 100.0
- - - 5)
- - - 5)
100.0 100.0 100.0
66.8 66.8 66.8
100.0 100.0 100.0
69.55 - - 14) and 23
- 86.5 100.0 14)
83.7 85.3 853 13)
100.0 100.0 100.0
100.0 - - 14)
99.98 99.98 86.5 14)
- 100.0 14)and 17

(Conti

nueg



Proportion of Ownership (%)

September 30, December 31,  September 30,
Investor Investee Main Business 2022 2021 2021 Remark
Arizon RFID Technology Co., Ltc  Yeon TechnologieéYangzhoy Co., Ltd. Sale and desigrf &®FID (radio frequency identificain) 100.0 100.0 100.0
products
Arizon RFID Techndogies(Hong Kong Co., Ltd.  Product disfibution and R&D servees 100.0 100.0 100.0
Arizon JAPAN Co., Ltd. Product distfution andechnical consultingervices 100.0 100.0 100.0
YFY RFID Technologies Co., Ltd  Yeon Technologies €, Ltd. Saleand deign of RFID(radio frequencydentificatior) 1000 100.0 100.0
products
Yuen Foong Yu Consumer Yuen Foong Yu Consumer Pragts Investment Investment and holding 100.0 100.0 100.0
Products Co., Ltd. Limited
Ever GrowingAgriculture Biotech Co., Ltd. Wholesale of agridture poducts 85.0 85.0 85.0
Yuen Foong Shop Co., Ltd. Sale of consumer products ircemmerce 100.0 100.0 100.0
YFY Consumer Products, Co. IP management and sabf consumer products by 100.0 100.0 100.0 6)
e-commerce
Yuen Foong Yi Consume YFY Investment Co., Ltd. Investmentand holding and sale paper 100.0 1000 100.0
Products Investment iriited
YFY Investnent Co., Ltd. YFY Family Care(Kunshan Co., Ltd Manufacture and sale of tissue paper and napkins 100.0 1000 100.0
Yuen Foong Yu Consner Product§Yangzhoy Manufacture and sale of tissue paper and napkins 100.0 100.0 100.0
Co., Ltd.
Shin Foong Specialty and Applie  ShinFoong Trading SdrBhd. Sale of SBRstyrene butadieneibbe) and industrial 100.0 100.0 100.0
Materials Co., Ltd. chemicals
YFY Development Corp. Chung Hwa Pip Corporation Pulp and pger poduction, trading and forestry busines 0.1 0.1 0.1 1)
Yuen Foong Yu Consumer Products Co., Ltd. Production andale of hgh qualty paper and 19 19 1.9 1) and 15
papetrelaied merchandise
Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. To operate cogenation and provide power technology - 1.0 1.0 20)
Avrizon RFID Tehnology(Caymar) Co., Ltd. Investment and holdgn 0.15 - - 22)
Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. YFY Capital Holdings Corp. Invesment and holding 100.0 100.0 100.0
YFY CapitalHoldings Cop. YFY (ShanghgiFinancial Services Co., Ltd. Exportfactoring, domestic factoring, businesstbring 100.0 100.0 100.0
and related condting sevices, development ofedit
risk management platform
YFY Paradigm Investment Co., Union Paer Corp. Manufacture and sale of paper 4.1 4.1 4.1 2)
Ltd. YFY Biotech Management Co., Ltd. Corsulting 100.0 100.0 100.0
Chung Hwa Pulp Corporain Pulp and paper production, trading and forestry busin 0.7 0.7 0.7 1)
Livebricks Inc. Information pr@essing srvices 100.0 100.0 100.0
YuenFoong YuConsumeiProducts Co., Ltd. Production and sale digh quality paper and 6.5 6.5 5.9 1)and 19
papetrelatedmerchandise
Yuen Yan Paper Container Co., Ltd. Saleand nanufacture of corrugated paper and materia 0.07 0.07 0.07
Pek Crown Paper Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of containers 0.03 0.8 0.03
Avrizon RFID Technology(Caymar Co., Ltd. Invesment and holding 0.15 - - 22)
Yuen FoongShopCo., Ltd. Shanghai YFY mternational Trad€o., Ltd. General trade - - - 11)
Yuen Foong ShofHK) Limited General trade 100.0 100.0 100.0
San YingEnterprise Co., Ltd. Kunshan Actview Carbon Technology Co., Ltd. Manufacture and satsf adive carbon - - 66.4 16)
Chung Hwa Pulp Corporation CHP Internationa(BVI) Corporation Invegment and holding 100.0 1000 100.0
Effion Enertet Ca, Ltd. To operate cogeneration and provide power technolor - 49.0 49.0 20)
Hwa Fonglnvestment Co., Ltd. Investment antiolding 100.0 100.0 100.0
CHP Internationa(BV1) Guangdong Dingfungu®p & Paper Cq Ltd. Pulp and paper produoti and trading business 60.0 60.0 60.0
Corporation Zhaoqing Dingfung Forestry Gd.td. Seedlingecultivation and saleseforestation, 20.2 20.2 20.2
salescumforest logging and other forestry, process
and transportation
Syntax Commurmiation (H.K.) Limited Sale and prinof paper mercharse 100.0 100.0 100.0
Hwa Fong Investment Co., Ltd. Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. To operate cogeneration and provide power technolo - 1.0 1.0 20)
Genovela Renewales Inc. Sale and praattion of fertilizer, etail sale ofood 100.0 100.0 100.0
products and groceries, plant cultivationyaefory
materials manufacturing, cement and cotecre
products manufaaring, refractory materials
wholesale and sale of building matérimanpaever
services and wholekaand sale of chemigtraw
materias
Union Pajer Corp. Manuactureand sale of paper 6.4 4.1 2.8 2)and 19
Guangdog Dingfung Pulp & Zhaoging Dingfung Forestry Co., Ltd. Seedlingcultivation and salesgforestation, 66.3 66.3 66.3
Paper Co., Ltd. salescum+forest logging and other forestry, process
and transportation
Shenzhen Jinglun Paper Co., Ltd. Sale of papemerchandise and import/export business 100.0 100.0 100.0
Zhaoging Xinchuan Green Technagy Co., Ltd. Environmental equipment technology reseamth a 100.0 1000 1000
development; constructiaf wastewater, flue gas,
noise and solid waste treatment; pure water treatm
construction; environmental technologynsailting;
saleof environmental protection eqoent and
chemical raw material; import and export of casgal
technology
Guizhou Yuanfung Forestry Co., Ltd. Seedling cultivation and sales, oedstation, 67.0 67.0 - 18)

ZhaogingDingfung Forestry Co.,
Ltd.

Remarks

sakes-cum-forest logging and othdorestry, processin
and transportation

(Concludedl

1) Exceptfor YFY International B.V., YFY Mauritius Corp., Chung Hwa Pulp Corporation, Yuen
Foong Yu Consumer Products Chtd., YFY Packging Inc., Shin Foong Specialtsnd Applied
Materials Co., td., andYFY Paradigm Investment Co., Ltdnd investeesmertioned in Tables 8
and 9 the financial statements of the remaining s@mificant subsidiaries were not reviewed by
the auditors.

2) China Cdor Printing Co., Ltd. and Uon Paper Cp. were deemed subsidiaries because the Group
had substantial cordi over them evethough tte Group held less than 50% equity interest in each
of the subsidiarigsvoting sharesthe Group disposed ofsitpartial ownership of Shin Foong
Specalty and Aplied Materials Co., Ltd. and equity changes such as employee gptaoes,
which rediced itsshareholding ratio to 48.0%. Shin Foong Specialty and Applied Materials Co.,
Ltd. wasdeemed a subsidiary sinttee Groy did not cease to have cortower thee subsidiaries.
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3) In order to improvethe invesment managementfficiency and maagement pgormarce of
packaging business in mainland China, the Comisabgard of directors approved the iestmert
structure ajustmentof packaging busirssin mainland China in Deember 20Q. The Company
proceeds with the investmentstructure adjustm@ which included 11 subsidiaries with YFY
Packaging'Yangzhou Investnent Co, Ltd. as the holding companihe apgication wasapproved
by the competent autrity in March 2021andthe above pcess wasompletedn Decenber 2021.

4) In order to specleze on is majorbusiness operatip the Compan® board of directors appred
the Adivision spinoff capital reduction proposab tha spn-off assets, liallities am business
operaion of the Chenggong plant of FY Paclagng Inc., inegrate them into Y Developnent
Corm. and issue new shares by YFY Development Caspthe corigleration fo the transfer of the
divisionin Janary 2021. The above process hbsen firished in Januan2021.

5) Kunshan YFY Advertising andPrinting Co.,Ltd. entered the beruptcy pocedue in January
2021. Due to he Grous loss of control, it Fenot been included in the conislated financial
statemets since January 202fefer to Note 27.

6) YFY ConsumerProducts, Co. was &dlishal in Feruary 221 and has been @uded inthe
corsolidated financial statements senihen.

7) YFY Packaing Capital Corp. entered thguidation in March 2021L. Due b the Groujds loss of
control, it has not beemcluded n the consolidatedrfancialstatenents sice March2021.

8) YFY Jupter (BVI) Inc. acquiredl.3% ownership ofJupiter Pestige Grop Holdings Limited for
the three monthended Mach 31, 221. Thusthe shareholdingatio of the YFY Jupiter(BVI) Inc.
in Jupiter Prstige Goup Hobdings Limited increased to 58.3%.

9) YFYPack Advance Ltd. was established in May 2021 and baenincluded n the consolidated
financial staéments. YFYPack Adwance Ltdwasliquidatedin regporse to the Grouds opeational
strategy Due tothe Grougs loss of contol, it has not beemduded n the casolidated financial
statements sincéganuary2022.

10) Jupter Prestige Group dfth Ameria Inc. acqured 20.06 ownersip of Contrast LLC ér the sk
months ended Joe 30, 202. Thus, the sharelting raio of the dipiter Prestige GrougNorth
America Inc in Contrast LLC increased to 80.0%.

11) In order torespad the changesni the mainland Oha market the boad of directors of the
subsidary, Yuen FoongShop Co.Ltd., re®lved to dispose dll of its ownerslip of Shanghai YFY
Intemational Trade Co, Ltd. in July 2021. The disposal was completed in Augb2i.2

12) The Canpanys board ofdirectors approved YFY Cayman Co., Ltd. to acqué all shares of
Willpower Industries Ltd. owned by GreéaPeific Investments imited in August 281. Thus,the
shaeholding ratio of the YFY Cayman Co., Ltd. in Willpower Uistkies Ltd. inceased to 100%

13) Due tothe equty changs such asYFY Jupite (BVI) Inc. purchaseof treasury shresand transfer
of treasuy sharesto empoyees the shareHdings ratio of the YFY Global InvestmenB.V. in YFY
Jupiter(BVI) Inc. werechange.

14) In September 202the Compay& boad of directors approved theesolution of submitting he
listed application of the Aizon RFD Technology Cq Ltd. on the stok exchangdn Taiwanand
carried out arestructuing of the organization After the adjustment Arizon RFID Tehnology
(Caymarj Co., Ltd. are expeted to behe main antity listed in Taiwan The submissiompplication
was completedn October 2022. Due to the restricturing, part of the shareholdingratio was
changedbutthe Group did not cease have control osr these dosidiaries.
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15) Due to the eqty changesthe GoupG subscription of additional shas of Yuen Foong Yu
ConsumerPraducts Co.,Ltd. at a percetage differen from its existing evnership percentage in
September 2021hé shaeholding ratio of the Groupm Yuen Foong Yu Consmer Produts Co.,
Ltd. was educedto 66.9%. In October 2021, th&roup acquired 0.6%hareholthg in Yuen Fong
Yu ConsumerProducts Co.Ltd., ard the sharetiding ratio of the Group in Yuen Foongu
Consumer Products Co., Ltd. irEsedto 67.5%

16) In responseo the changs inthe mainland China market, the boaxf directors of thesubsidiay,
San Ying Enerpiise Co., Ld., resolvedto dispo® of all ofits ownership ofKunshan Actview
CarbonTechnobgy Co., Ltd.in SeptembeR021. The disposal wasompletedn Decembe021.

17) Arizon RFID Technology(Cayman Co., Ltd. was estaldhed in @tober 2021 anl induded inthe
consolidatd financal statemerst

18) Guizhou Yuanfung Forestry Co.td. was established in December 2Dand included in the
consolidagd financialstatenents.

19) Hwa Fong Investment Co.td. acquired.78%, 1.3% and2.3% ownershp of Union PaperCorp.
respetively, for the nine months endedn SeptemberR021, from Octoberthrough Decemberin
2021 andfor the nine monthsended in SeptembeR022, regpectively. Thus, the sharehdling ratio
of the Hwa Fondnvestment Co., Id. in Union Pape Corp. was igreased t®.4%.

20) In order b improve maragement perforance,the Grog carried ot a restructuring ofthe
organizaion. Chung Hwa PulpgCorporation YFY Developnent Corp. and Hwa Fong Investmiet
Co., Ltd. sold their sharesin Effion Enerech Co., Ltd.to the Compny. The above processwas
compleedin March 2022.

21) YFY International Labuan Co., Lténered theliquidation in August2022. Due b the Grouyds loss
of control, it has not beemcluded n the consolidatedrancialstatenents sincéAugust2022.

22) Due to the eqty changs, the Groy subscribed additional shas of Arizon RFID Techntogy
(Cayman) Co., Ltd.at a percentage differefrom its exidging owvnership percentagm August 2022
and YFY Global Investrent B.V. disposé of someof its sharesn Arizon RAD Technology
(Cayman Co, Ltd. to YFY Development Corp.YFY Paradigm Investmento., Ltd., specific
investorsand financial invests. As a resul the shaeholding réio of the Group inArizon RFID
Technology (Cayman Co., Ltd. was redaedto 69.85%, which include its shardolding ratio of
69.55%in YFY Global Investment B.V..0.15% h YFY Development Corpand0.15% inYFY
Pamadigm Irvestment ©@., respectivelyArizon RFID TechnologyCayman Co., Ltd was deemed
a subsidiary since the Group did not eetishave control over ithsubsidiay.

Refer to Table8 and9 for the informaiton on place of incarporation angrincipal place of business.
b. Detailsof subsidiaies that have matial non-controling interests
Proportion of Ownership and Voting Rights
Held by Non-controlling In terests

September 30, December31, September 30,
Name of Supsidiary 2022 2021 2021

Chung Hwa PulCorporation 41.4% 414% 41.4%
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ChungHwa Pulp Corportion and subsidiaries

Septenber 30, Decemier 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Current assst $ 15,865,577 $ 14,411937 $ 14,358,214
Non-current assets 19,461802 19556,519 19,627,412
Current liabilities (11,324,41) (13,203,843 (13,960,983
Non-current labilities (5,689.431) (3,131,048 (2,358919
Equity 18,103,837 17633,564 17,665724
Consolidated adgtments 94,109 94,109 94,109
Adjusted equity $ 18,197,646 $ 17,127,613 $ 17,759,833

Equity attributabé ta
Owners ofChung Hwa Pulp Corporation $ 9,313,835 $ 9,117,982 $ 9,135,314
Non-controling interests of Chung Hwa

Pulp Corporation 6,583987 6,445539 6,457,791
Non-controlling interests of Chung Hwa
Pulp Corporatioris subsidiaes 2,299,824 2,164152 2,166,728

$ 18,197,646 $ 17,727,673 $ 17,759833

For the Three Months Endel For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 Sepember 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Opeating revenue $ 6,163,399 $ 517658 $ 17,911,924 $ 16,395,066
Profit for the peiod $ 312802 $ 135670 $ 446015 $ 657,536
Other comprehensiviacome

(losy9 for the peiod 213,187 (91,060 461,496 26,015
Total comprehensivincome

for the period $ 525989 $ 4460 $ 907511 $ 683,51

Profit attributable to

Owners & Chung Hwa Pulp

Corporatim $ 170,513 $ 89,86 $ 233936 $ 384317
Non-controlling interests of

Chung Hwa Pulp

Corporation 116,756 63,399 156,616 271,65
Non-controlling interegs of

Chung Hwa Pulp

Corporatonés subsidiaries 25,533 (17,415 55,463 1,544

$ 31282 $ 13H6M $ 446,015 $ 657,536
(Continued
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Total compehensive income

attributable to

Ownea's of ChungHwa Rulp
Corporaion

Non-controlling interests of
Chung Hva Pulp
Corporation

Non-controlling interestof
ChungHwa Pulp
Corporatiors subsidiaies

Net cash inflowfrom:
Operatingactivities
Investing actiities
Financing ativities

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

Effectsof exchangerate chages

Net cash inflow

Dividends @id to norcontolling interests

15. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Material assaates
E Ink Holdings Inc.

Associates that are not indolially material

September30 Septenber 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ 282,382 $ 41612 $ 47226  $ 420,356
195771 29,507 313,659 297,242
47,886 (26,509 121,126 (34,047
$ 525,989 $ 44610 $ 907,511 $ 683,551
(Conduded
For the Nine Months Ended
Sepember 30
2022 2021
$ 652,777 $ 408,875
(355,661 (1,165,820
268,171 942,473
48061 (5,743
$ 613,348 $ 179,785
$ 182,693 $ -
Septemter 30, Decembe 31, Septembe 30,
2022 2021 2021
$ 6,873,922 $ 5,948,270 $ 5,449,380
140,57 154,531 168,309
$ 7,014,549 $ 6,102,081 $ 5,617,68

Refea to Tables 8 and9 for the nature of adtities, prircipal place of businesnd country of incorpation

of the &sociates.
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a. Materialas®ciates

Proportion of Ownership and Voting Rights
September 30, December 31, September 30,
Name of Associate 2022 2021 2021

E Ink HoldingsInc. 16.2% 16.2% 16.2%

The investments in E Ink Holdljjs Inc. was amunted for ging the equitynethodsince the Goup had
significant influence over E Ink Holdings Inc. even though then@any heldless thar0% of the
investeés votingshares.

In 2013, tle Graup increased its investment in E Ink Holdirigs. by buying40,000 thouand shares of
the inveseds privaely placed ordingy shares for $658,000 thousand. Under the related ateans,
privately phcedordinary shares shouldnbe tranterred witin three years from the date of acquisition.
E Ink Holdings Inc.has not yetompleted pubshing poceduresasof the report date. The other rights
and obligations are the samg thos of ordinaly shares

Invesments inmatrial assoiateswere accounted faising the equity methaahd the share of profit or
loss al other compehersive income(losg of those nvestments were calculatégsed on financial
statements which hazen rgiewed.

Fair values(Level 1) of investnents in Elnk Holdings Inc. with gailable published priceuptations
were summarized as folles (excludingthe privately placed ordinary shies:

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2022 2021 2021

$ 30,670,294 $ 21845351 $ 10,676,735
The summeézed financial information below represésm amounts shown in the @incial statementsf E
Ink Holdings Inc. prepared in accordance witlR&s and has been adjusted by the Group for equity
accaunting purpees

Sepember 30, December 31, Sepgember 30,

2022 2021 2021
Current assets $ 24,779,824 $ 19,263,37% $ 18,617,62
Non-currentassets 39,229353 37,746,625 32,975,131
Current liabilities (15,926,915 (17,839,575 (16,014,799
Non-current liabilities (6,650901) (3,472,539 (2,97Q0899
Equity 41,431,361 35,697,885 32,607,85
Non-controlling interests (547,37) (530,719 (523,496

$ 40,883,764 $ 35,167166 $ 32,183,589

Proportion of the Grougs ovnersip 16.26 16.26 16.2%
Equity attributabld¢o the Group $ 6,620,512 $ 5,694,810 $ 5,195,920
Goodwill 253460 253460 253,460
Carryingamount $ 6,873972 $ 5948270 $ 5,449,380
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For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 Sepember 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Operating revenue $ 8103880 $ 4,396,760 $ 21,517,563 $ 12,882,941
Net proft for the period $ 4,267,106 $ 1,235,145 $ 8,127,976 $ 3,830,065
Other comprehelige income

(losg 733,299 (723,230 935,860 609,693
Total comprehensive income

for the period $ 5,000,405 $ 51195 $ 9,063836 $ 4,439,758

b. Aggregatdnformation of associates that are not indolually material

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September30
2022 2021 2022 2021
The Grougs share of
Net profi (loss) for the
period $ (3,82) $ (9,05 $ (18,339 $ 125,208
Otha comprehensive incon
(losg - (7,811 (1,0®) (55,209

Total comprehensivincome

(los9 for the period $ (3,82) $ (16,826 $ (19339 $ 70,004

Except fa the review financial stamentsfor the eght months endediugust 31, 2021 of Taiwan
Global Biokund Co., Ltd, investments inssociates that are not individually material were accounted
for using the equiy method ad the slare of profit or loss and dter comprehensive incomgossy of
those investments were calculatedeuabsn finacid statementsvhich have not éen reviewed.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and Miscellareows Construction in
Freehold Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Progress Total

Cost
Balance at Jamary 1, 2022 $ 14,256,238 $ 15,977,069 $ 66,799,914 $ 13,617,300 $ 112761 $ 111,763,442
Additions 383274 156,75 920,711 281,143 1,651,912 3,393795
Disposés - (27,369 (296,83) (252,029 - (252,029
Transfer from costructions - 38,665 741,812 61,170 (841,677 -
Reclassification tanvestment

propertes (499200) - (499,200)
Reclassificabn - (22,39%) (22,34)
Effectof foreign currency exchang

differences - 314,679 888,607 157,804 21,695 1382,7%
Balance at Seépmber30, 2022 $ 14,140472 $ 16,459,807 $ 69,064,181 $ 13865,388 $ 1,922,297 $ 115,442,145

(Contirued
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Machinery and Miscellaneous Construction in

Freehold Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Progress Total

Accumulated depréation

and impairnent
Balance at January 2022 $ 612 $ 7,697,790 $ 45,592381 $ 10,070,81 $ - $ 63,361,774
Depreciation expense - 396,658 1,995570 548560 - 2,940,788
Disposals - (22433 (291,489 (248,499 - (562419)
Effectof foreign curency exchang:

differences - 107519 503371 113503 - 724,38
Balanceat SeptembeB0, 2022 $ 612 $ 8179494 $ 47,799.84 $ 10,483,996 $ - $ 66,463,936

Carrying amount alanuary 12022 $ 14,2557% $ 8279,319 $ 21,207,533 $  3,546869 $ 1,112,761 $ 48402268

Carryingamount & September 30,

2022 $ 14,139,860 $ 8280313 $ 21,254,347 $ 3,381,392 $ 1,922,297 $ 48,978,209
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 13,948,225 $ 15,384,056 $ 64,867,359 $ 13,074493 $ 1677,494 $ 108,951,627
Additions 1,075,034 339,482 1,265,318 386,717 939164 4,005,715
Dispasds (7,262 (39,901 (373,450 (89,849 - (510,462
Transfer from constructions - 492256 913475 172,945 (1,578,676 -
Transferdueto derecognition of

subsidiary - - - (63,717) - (63,719
Reclassiftation to investment

properties (786,029 (208,809 - - - (994,832
Reclassfication as held for sale - (21,262 - - - (21,262
Reclassificabn - (5,190) (31,892 37,488 (160,420 (160,019
Effect of foreign currency exchanc

differences - (133,349 (403577) (63,523 (11,139 (611,580
Balance at Septemba6, 2021 $ 14,229,973 $ 15,807288 $ 66,23%,233 $ 13454554 $ 866,427 $ 110,595,475
Accumulated depreciation
__and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 2,597 $ 7,377,349 $ 43,670,154 $ 9,546,670 $ - $ 60,596,770
Depreciatim expense - 380,234 1,944,005 527,38 - 2,851,632
Disposals (2,076) (21,819 (363,340) (88,162 - (475,399
Transferdue to derecognition of

subsidiary - - - (63,717) - (63,717)
Reclasdication to investment

properties - (128,050 - - - (128,060)
Rechssification as held for sale - (17,699 - - - (17,699
Reclassification - 11,800 (18,089 6,862 - 573
Effect of foreign currency exchancg

differences - (47,859 (223920) (44,781 - (316,556
Balance at September 321 $ 521 $ 7,553,966 $ 45,008,810 $ 9,884,265 $ - $ 62,447,562
Carrying amount at January 1, 20 $ 13,945,628 $ 8,006,707 $ 21,197205 $ 3527,838 $ 1,677,494 $ 48,354,857
Carrying amounat September 30,

2021 $ 14,229.452 $ 8,253,322 $ 21228423 $ 3,570,289 $ 866,427 $ 48,147,913

(Concludedl

The aboe items of property, plant and equipment arerelégted on a straidnt-line basis over their
estimated usefulMes adollows:

Buildings
Main buildings 1555 year:
Others 3-50 years
Machinery ancequipment 3-20 year:
Miscellaneous equipment 3-50 year:
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The noncash investing activities dfie Groupfor the nnemonths ended September 2022 and2021are
asfollows:

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 202
Acquisition d property, pant and equipment $ 3,393,795 $ 4,005,715
Changes in prepayments for businesdities (351,109 (537,086
Changes ipayment ofpayables on agpment (accounted for as
other payables, othgrs (11,102 660,538

$ 3,031,584 $ 4,129,567

The Groupacquirediand for expansion of lhe factory speesin Sepgember 302022. However, the Group
wasunable to transfer thewnersip of theland dueto legd restridions thereforechoosing to erterinto a
nameborrowing contract with others. The otheis consented tdully cooperatewith the Groupin chaming
the ownerdip of thelandin the futureand pledge with the landin priority to the Group. As of Sgptember
30, 2022, the landsegistered by othas was $83,125thousard.

For the amourstof collateral pledged for bankorowings, refer to Not&3.

17. LEASEARRANGEM ENTS

a. Right-of-use assets

Septenber 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Carnjing amount
Land $ 1554,540 $ 1,469,516 $ 1,399,740
Buildings 402,48 399,973 365,126
Othas 163,650 168031 174,564

$ 2,120,637 $ 2,037,520 $ 1,939,430

For the Nine Months Ended

Sepgember 30
2022 2021
Additions to rightof-use assts $ 220,241 $ 247,253
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Depreciation charge for rigitf-use

asses

Land $ 18,761 $ 11,024 $ 51,522 $ 33,270

Buildings 34,137 34,747 97,165 98,354

Others 18834 15,370 55,124 45,113

$ 71732 $ 61141 $ 203,811 $ 176737
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Except for the arementioned addion and recognized depreciation expense, the Group didavet
significant subleaserampairment of rightof-use assstduring the nine manths ended September 30,
2022and 2021

For the amourstof collaterl pledgedfor bank borrowirgs, refer to Not&3.

b. Lease liabilities

Septembe 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Carrying amount
Curent $ 200680 $ 177846 $ 153,038
Non-current $ 509894 $ 471777 $ 397,310

Range of discont rates for lea<e liabilities was as folloar

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Land 0.88%-1.68% 0.97%-1.68% 0.97%-1.68%
Buildings 0.86%-11.706 097%-11.70%  0.9@6-11.700
Others 0.868%0-6.00% 0.970-6.00% 0.97%-6.00%

c. Other lease information

For the Three Months Ended  For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Expenses relating to shetigérm
leases and lowalue assetleases $ 86411 $ 76,315 $ 254913 $ 221,810
Total cash outfle for leases $ 152,140 $ 127788 $ 435,215 $ 369,843

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTI ES

Amount

Cod

Balance a&January 12022 $ 3,861,276
Additions 53,343
Disposals (92435)
Trandger fromproperty, plant and equipment 499,200
Balance at September 322 $ 4321384

(Continued
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Amount

Accunulaied depreciation and impairment

Balance at January 2022 $ 328,285
Depreciaibbn expense 7,638

Disposals (2,8%)
Balance at September 322 $ 333,029
Carrying amount at Janyat, 2022 $ 3,532,991

Carlying amount at September 3022 $ 3,988,355
Cost

Balance at January, 2021 $ 2,867,764
Transfer fromproperty, plant and equipment 994,832
Balance at September 30, 2021 $ 3,862,5%

Accumulated depreciation andhpairment

Balance at Jauary 1, 2021 $ 183,460
Depreciation exgnse 8,319
Transfer fromproperty, plant and equipment 128,050
Balance at September 30, 2021 $ 319829
Carryingamourn at January 1, 2021 $ 2,684,304
Carlying amountat September@ 2021 $ 3,542,767
(Conduded)

The fair values of the investment properties owned by the Group $9e#85,951thousand$9,459,760
thousand an&9,461,359thousand a®f September 30, 2022, Deember 31, 2021 and September 30, 2021
respectively. Tie valuations were partialipade ly the Group using market transaction prices for similar
properties and not byndependet qualified professional valuerd.he rentalincomeswere $11,721
thousand$12,713thousand$31,983thousand an853,686thousand dr the three and nine monthaded
September 302022 and 2021respectively.

The Compangs board of directar approved the resolution of carrying out enj@onstrution of housng
with Ho TienCo., Ltd. (as a substantive related party of the Comjpanyg cooperated in the construction
of a portion of land in the Zhongshan Secta@rzhongshan District, Taipelity. The Company provided
the land, and Ho & Co., Ltd.was reponsble for completng the construction. The joint construction was
completedm October 2021 and a license foeugas obtained and the transfer of ownersigs completed
in February 2022

The investment properties held by the Grawgee depredated ower their estimated usful lives of 20 to 55
years, using the straighihe methal.

All of the Grougs investment mperties were held undereghold interests.
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19. BORROWINGS

a. Curren borrowings

September 30, December 3, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Bank credit loans $ 9,51Q721 $ 9,795555 $ 10,828,834
Bank secured loans 129,071 283,997 285,741
$ 9,639,792 $ 10,079,552 $ 11,113,775

Current borrowings include bartkedit and bank seured I@ns.As of September 30, 2022, December
31, 2021 and September 30, 20&1e inerest rate intervals of bank creftians werel.10%-7.40%per
annum,0.52/0-4.30%per annum an@.52%-3.85%per annum, respectively. As 8eptembeB0, 202,
December3dl, 2021and Sepgember 30, 2021the interest rate of bt secured loans we@03% per
annum,1.09% per annum and.09% perannum, respectely.

b. Shortterm notes and bills payable

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2022 2021 2021
Commecial paper $ 11,025,000 $ 9,299,000 $ 13,876,000
Less Unamatized disounts on bills payabl (6,782 (2,843 (10,990
$ 11018,218 $ 9,26,1% $ 13,865010

The commercial paper is due withbne year.Interestrate intervals on these bills payable were
1.326-1.72%per annum.7%6-0.93% per annum and.70%0.96% pe annum a of September 30,
2022, December 31, 2021 and September 30, ,2@8pectively.

c. Non-current borrowings

September30, December3l, September 30,
2022 2021 2021

Syndicated loans $ 24317835 $ 2459,836 $ 19,450,045
Long-temrm bark credt loans 2,351,220 1,911,220 1,851,220
Long-term bank secured loans 32,650 115,866 146,708
26,701,7® 26,577,922 21,447,973

Less Current portion (300,000 (57,933 (800,009
$ 26,40L,705 $ 26519989 $ 20,647,973

Longterm bank loans includesyndicate, credit and securedloans. Syndicaed loanswith monthly
interest payments expire iBeptember2027 and have interest rate intervad§ 1.7% per annum
1.79%-1.80% per anrum and 1.79% per annum as oBeptember 30, 2022, December 31, 2021 and
September @, 2021 respectively securedard credit loans expie in Felruary 2032 and have interest
rate intervals 0D.30%-1.30% per annum{.39%-2.78% per annunand0.39%-2.78%per annunmas of

September 30, 2022, December 31, 2021 and September 30re¥ctively
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PL ANS
Employee benefi expenses in respect of the Grodp defined benefit rement plans weré&él12,99
thousand$15,245thousand$40,804 thousad and$45,528thousndfor the three andiine months ended
September 3®022 and 2021respectively, and wesculatedusing the repectve actuarially determined
annual pension &b discount rates as of Deaber 312021 and 2020

21. EQUITY

a. Ordinary shares

Sepember 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021
Numbers of shares authzed (in thousand} 2,200000 2,200000 2,200,000
Value of shares authorized $ 22,000000 $ 22,000,000 $ 22,000,000
Number @ shares issued aridlly paid (in
thousandps 1,660,372 1,660,372 1,660,372
Value of shares issde $ 16603,715 $ 16,603,715 $ 16,638,715

Fully paid ordinary shares, whichave a par vakiof $10, carry one vote per sharel carrya right to
dividends.

b. Capital surplus

Depending on theource, capital surplus may be used in these wWaysirisingfrom sharesissued in
excess ofpar (including share premiums from thesuance of ordiery shares for mergers, treasury
share transations, and exces®f the consideration received over tharrging amount of the
subsidiarie@ net assets dumj disposalor acqusition) - may be used toffset a deficit; in addition,
when theCompany has noddicit, this capital surplus may lmkstribuied as cash dividesdor may be
transferred to share cagitmce a year within a certain percentage of they@oyés capial surgus; (2)
arising from the effect of changes in ownership inteseis subsidiarie due to equity transactions other
than actubdisposals or acdsitions- may be used to offset a defig(3) arising from changes in equity
in associags - may beused incompiance with relatedregulations if the capital surplus soeris either
of the foregoing two sources.

c. Retaired earning and dividend paty

Under the dividend policy as set florin the amended Articles, where the Company npdfit in a
fiscal year,the profit shall befirst utilized for paying taxes, offdig losses of @vious years, setting
aside as ledareservel0% of the remainip profit, setting aside or reversing pesial reserve in
accordance with the laws and régfions or n the neessay stuation, andhen any remaining profit
together with ay undistributedetained earnings shall be useddastribuion of dividends ad bonuses
to shareholders.

In making it dividend policy, the Company takes into accouturé capith expendtures ard working
capital requirements. Based on this policividends should & distributed as follows

1) Atleast 20% asash dividends; ah

2) The remainder after the distriboti of cash dividends as share dividends. If theeerequirenent
for capital expenditures, ta Company may distribute only share demds.

- 34 -



The boad of directors of the Company istharized toadopt a special selution to distribute dividends
and bonises in cash and a report of such distributionishime subntied inthe $areéholderdmeeting

Appropriation of earnings to the lalgreserve shalbe made until the legal reserveuats the
Companys paidin captal. The legal reserve may be used ffset deficis. If the Company has no
deficit andthe legal reserve ha exeeded25% of the Comanyis paidin capital, the excess may be
transferred taapital or distributed in cash.

Items referrd to under Rule NdL01001286%Rule No0.10901%022 issuedby the FSGvas adoted in
appropriations bearnngs since 2021) andthe drective titled fiQuestions and Answers for Special
Reserves Appropriated FoWing Adoptionof IFRS® should beappropiated to or reversed from a
special reserve by the @mpany. For any subsequent reversal ofdbduction in otheshareholdesd
equty, the apropriate amount of earnings distribution should be reversed from tlebit balane.

The appropriatinos ofearnngs for2021 and 202@ere as follows

Appropr iation of Earnings
For the Year EndedDecember 31

2021 2020
Legalreseve $ 465,605 $ 606,583
Cash dividends $ 2,490,59 $ 2,490,557
Cash dividends per shafdT$) $ 15 $ 15

The aforementionedappropiation for cad dividends hadeen resolvedy the board of directorsn
March 15, 2022 ad Februay 26, 2021, respectivly. The other proposedppropriationof earrings for
2021 and 2020were resolved by the sheamnoldersd medings on June 23, 2022 and May 17, 202,
respetively.

Other equity items

Unrealized
Gains(Losse$
on Financial
Exchange Assets
Differenceson  Measured at Equity Related
Translation of Fair Value to Disposal
Foreign Through Other  Gains(Losse} Group
Financial Comprehengve on Hedging Classified as
Statements Income Instruments Held for Sale Total

For tre nire morths ended

September 30, 2@2
Balanceat Januar 1 $ (2,185,6B) $ 10575,017 $ - $ - $ 8,33401
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign financial statements 2,280,94 - - - 2,280,804
Unrealizedgains on financial assetseasure:

at FVTOCI - 2,177,798 - - 2,177,798
Share obther comprehensive inconless

of associates accounted for using eguit

method 191,743 (42,498) - - 149250
Charges in euity of associates accotea for

using equity method 370 - - - 370
Acquisiion or disposalof partial interests in

subsidiaries 36,906 - - - 36905
Changes in ownership intstin subsdliaries (6,54 - - - (6,541)
Currulative unealized gains of equity

instruments transfeed to retaied

earnirgs due to disposal - (200,659 - - (200,658
Balance at September 30 $ 317,665 $ 12,509,664 $ - $ - $ 12,827,329

(Continued
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Unrealized
Gains(Losse$

on Financial
Exchange Assets
Differenceson  Measured at Equity Related
Translation of Fair Value to Disposal
Foreign Through Other  Gains (L osses) Group
Financial Comprehensive  on Hedging Classified as
Statements Income Instruments Held for Sale Total
For the nine months ende
September 30, 2021
Balanceat January 1 $ (1,509,007 $ 6,633,307 $ (3,025 % - $ 5,121,275
Excharge diferences on translation of
foreignfinancial satements (550,969 - - - (550,969
Reclassification of equity related disposal
groupclassified as held for sale - - - 636 636
Unrealized géns on fnandal assets measure
at FVTOCI - 1,774,864 - - 1,774,864
Gains on hdging instruments - - 3,025 - 3,025
Share obther comprehensive inconfless
of associates accounted for using eguit
method (198,630 251,92 - - 52,872
Changes in equy of associateaccounteddr
using eqity method - (2,712 - - 2,712
Disposl of partial interests in subsidiaries 5 (1,001 - - (996)
Changes in owerslip interest in subsidiarie 15,7% (26) - - 15,769
Cumulative unealized gains of equit
instruments transferred to retained
earnngs due to disposal - (28,619 - - (28,619
Balance aSepterber $ (2,242,806 $ 8,627,323 $ - $ 636 $ 6,385,563
(Concluckd
Non-controlling interests
For the Nine Months Ended
September 30
2022 2021
Balance at January 1 $ 14,604,72 $ 13,302,73
Share of profit for the period 576,3(8 2,395,820
Other comprehensive inconfless for theperiod:
Exchange differences omanslation of foreigtinancial
statements 306507 (136,807
Unrealized gaingosse$ on financial assets mgaed at
FVTOCI (7,28) 119,698
Gains orhedge instruments - 2,174
Share of othecomprehensivencomeof associateaccounted
for using the gquity method 7,165 926
Cash dividends (1,330,944 (869,623
Changes in quity of as®ciatesaccountedfor using equity
method 2,30 (7,139
Changes in ownership Brests in sulidiaries 108,824 646,323
Acquisition or disposal of partianterests in subsidiaries 586200 (1,032,083
Balanceat Septembe30 $ 14853,818 $ 1442,08
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22. REVENUE

For the Three Months Ended For the NineMonths Ended

Septenber 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenue from contragtwith
customers revenudgrom sale of
goods $ 17,8473% $ 15,864820 $ 52,441,494 $ 50,739,793
Revenue from contracts with
customers other 2557,122 3921586 7.844788 12,911,320
$ 20404517 $ 19786406 $ 60,86282 $ 63,651,113
ContractBalances
Sepgember 30, December 31, September30, January 1,
2022 2021 2021 2021
Notes receivableet $ 2777214 $ 4431191 $ 449878 $ 3,453523
Accounts receivabl, net $ 131M4,759 $ 13,092,096 $ 11677863 $ 11,811120
Accourts receivable due from
related parties, net $ 54,603 $ 71403 $ 65,738 $ 98,198

Contract liabilties- sale ofgoods $ 504306 $ 51617/ $ 550,162 $ 552667

23. NET PROFIT
a. Finance costs

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

Septembe 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Interest on Ank loans $ 246,971 $ 140,285 $ 569304 $ 402,317
Interest on lease liabilitee 4553 3,713 12,768 8,383
Less Captalization amounof
interest (1,755) (1,689 (3,499 (6,220

$ 249,769 $ 142,31 $ 578,58 $ 404,48

Information about capdlized interest is as follows

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
Capitalzation rate 0.80%-1.51% 0.7%%-1.46%
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b. Depreciation and amortization

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

Septembe 30 September30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Property, plant and equipmen $ 954987 $ 961,83 $ 2,940,788 $ 2,851,62
Investment pperties 2457 2,762 7,638 8,319
Right-of-use assets 71,732 61,141 203811 176,737
Other nonRcurrent assets 24,38 27,779 79,829 97,742

$ 1,053,519 $ 1053615 $ 3,232066 3,134,430

An analysis of depreciation by

function
Operatingcods $ 916,32 $ 904,122 $ 2,829,07 $ 2,672,142
Operatingexpenses 112794 121,74 323,160 364,546

$ 1,029,156 $ 1,025,836 $ 3,152237 $ 3,036,688

An analysis of amortizain by

function
Operaing costs $ 2,956 $ 10,415 $ 19,163 $ 40,519
Operating expenses 21,387 17,364 60,666 57223

$ 24,343 $ 27,779 $ 79,829 $ 97,742

c. Employee benefitexpense

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 Sepember 30

2022 2021 2022 2021

Postemployment benefits
Defined contibution plans $ 49840 $ 46,119 $ 152,892 $ 139,542

Defined benefit plans 12,991 15,246 40604 45,58
62,831 61,364 193496 185,070

Sharebased payments 2,709 7,692 9,131 7,892
Other employe benefis 2,163863 2,284,428 6,637922 6,811.,34

Total employee benefits
expense $ 2,229403 $ 2,353,484 $ 6,840549 $ 7,004,10®

An analysis of employee
benefits expense by functic
Operating coss $ 1,29618 $ 1,317,534 $ 4,004,711 $ 4,064,176
Operating expenses 933,218 1,035,950 2,835,88 2,939933

2,229,403 $ 2,3534%4 $ 6,840,549 $ 7,004,109
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d. Compensation of employees amthuneratio of directors
The Company axued compensatin of employeesnd remunet#on of directors at the ras no less
than 01% and no higher than 2%, respectivelyf net profit before income tax, compensation of
employees, and remuneration of ediors. The compenston of employees andemureration of
directors for tle three andiine months ended Septembdlr, 2022 and 2024re as follows
Accrual rate

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
Compensation of employees 0.09% 0.08%
Remuneratbn ofdirectors 0.71% 0.35%

Amount

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 Sepember 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Compensation of employees $ (869 $ 1293 $ 2,088 $ 3,880
Renmuneation ofdirectas $ 550 $ 5,500 $ 16,500 $ 16,500

If there is a change in the amosirgfter te annual consolidat financial statements/ere authorized
for issue, the differences are recorded as a change in the accountingeestima

The conpensabn of enployees andemuneratia of directors for the years ended Decem®ir2021
and 2020 which have beerapprowed by he Companys board ofdirectors onMarch 15 2022 and
February 26, @21, respectively, are as follows

Amount
For the Year Ended Decembe 31
2021 2020
Cash Cash
Compensation of employees $ 5,550 $ 5,361
Remurerationof directors 22,000 22,000

There is no difference bgeen the actual amounts of compensation of employees andemtian ¢
director paid anddeclaed on March 15, 2022 ral February 26, 2021, by board of the Company,
recognized irthe consolilated financiastatements for the years ended Decembe2821 and @20,

Information on the compensation of dyees and emuneratio of directas reslved ly the

Companys board bdirectors is available at the Market Observation PoseS8ysiebsite bthe Taiwan
Stack Exchange.
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24. INCOME TAXES
a. Major componentsf incometax expenseecognized in profior loss

For the ThreeMonths Ended For the Nine Months Ended
Sepember 30 September 30

2022 2021 2022 2021

Current tax
In respetof the current
period $ 113,665 $ 367,651 $ 599096 $ 1,652,951
Deferred tax
In respect of thecurrent
period 17,089 43,470 41,629 134,850

130,754 $ 411121 $ 640,725 $ 1,787,801

b. Incometax recognizeddirectly in equity

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current tax
Disposal of partial interests
in subsidiaries $ 60,582 $ - $ 60,582 $ -

c. Incometax approved situation

Final Approved Year

The Company 2017
Yuen Foong Yu Consumé@&roducts ©., Ltd. 2017
Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. 2020
YFY Develgmert Corp. 2020
SanYing Entermprise Co., Lt. 2020
Fidelis IT Solutons ., Ltd. 2020
Ever Growng Agriculture Biotech Co., Ltd. 2020
YFY BiotechManagemenCo., Ltd 2020
YFY CorporateAdvisory & ServiceCo., Ltd. 2020
LivebricksInc. 2020
YuenFoong Shop CoLtd. 2020
Sustainable Cavohydrate Imovation Co, Ltd. 2020
Hwa Forg Investnens Co., Ltd. 2020
Shin Fooigy Specalty andApplied Materials Co., td. 2020
ChinaColor Printing Ca, Ltd. 2020
YFY Paradigm Inveshent Co., Ltd. 2020
Yuen Yan PapeC€Container Co, Ltd. 2020
GenovellaRenewable#nc. 2020
Pek CrowrPaperCo.,Ltd. 2020
Chung Hva Pulp Ceoporaion 2020
Union Paper Corp. 2019
Yeon Technadgies Co, Ltd. 2019
YFY Packagirg Inc. 2018
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25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Basic earningsqr share (NT$ $ 0.88 $ 0.78 $ 134 $ 274
Diluted eanings pe shae (NT$) $ 0.88 $ 0.78 $ 1.34 $ 2.74

The earnings and weighted average numbeordinary sharesutstanding usedn the computatin of
earnngs per shie ae as follows:

Net Profit for the Period

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Profit for the perd attributabldo

owners of theCompany $ 1,462,056 $ 1,300930 $ 2,25534 $ 4,554,98
Earnings use in the computation

of diluted eanings per stare $ 1,462015 $ 1,300,99 $ 2,225534 $ 4,554,98

Number of Share (In Thousand9g

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021

Weighted averge nunber of

ordinaly shaes used in the

computdion of basic earnings

per share 1,660372 1,66Q372 1,66Q372 1,660,322
Effect of potertially dilutive

ordinary shares:

Compensation of employees 87 114 131 155

Weighted aveage umber of
ordinary shass used in the
computatia of dilutedearnings
per share 1,660459 1,660,486 1,660,503 1,660527

The Group may settle compensation paid to employees irocastares; therefore, the Grouases that

the entie amaint of the compesaton will be settled in shares, and the resulting potential shalelse
included in the wighted aveage rumber of shares outstanding used in the computation of diluted earnings
per share, if the effect is dilve. Suchdilutive effect of the poential slares was included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share uihiid board of dectors resole the number of shares to be
distributed to employeen the following year.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

a. Employee share gtionsreservedvhenthe subsidiarysswed new shares Yuen Foong Yu Casumer
Products Co., Ltd.

The boad of directors bthe subsidiary resolved tigsue 22,223housandshare in June 2021In

accordance witltCompany Act Yuen Foong Yu Consumer Roduds Co., Ltd. reserved10% of the
issuedshareswhich totaled2,223thousandsharesas employee shamptonsin Septembe2021. The
eligible participant®of theshare options arthe fulltime employees (including tHall-time employeess

of thesubadinae companies) who meet certain specific requirements. The options djaetealid for
0.01 years antheexercise prices $52 per share.

Information onemployee shareptiors reserved wherssued new sharda September @1 was as

follows:

Number of

Options (In

Thousands of  Exercise Prie
EmployeeShare Options Units) %)
Granted in Septeber2021 2,223 $ 52
Weightedaverage fair value of options gitad in September
2021 (%) $ 3.46

The sulsidiary meadured emfoyee shae options by using the BlaecholesMerton Option Pricing
Model, and tk inputs to the models werefa ows:

Share prie at the grant date $55.2¢
Exercise price $52
Expeded volatility (%) 44.8E
Expected lives (yeayrs 0.01
Risk free nterest rae (%) 0.13

The employee benefit expenses recognized on the empdbgee option plans were $7,68®usand
for the thee and nine months ended September 30, 2021.

b. Employee share options plahthe subsidiry - Shin Foong Specialy and Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

In order to attract and retain the professional taleeeded by the subsidiarnproet he empl oy
cohesion and sense of beging to thesubsidiary and jointly create the feress of subsdiary and
shareholdersthe boad of directors of the subsidiary resolved igsue 2,318 employee share optiams i
April 2016. Each option etitles the holder to doscribe for 1,000 ordingrshares of Shin Foong
Specialty and Applied Matexis ., Ltd. The eligibleparticipantsfor shae ogions are the fulitime
employees who meet certain specific requirementseogtibsidiary. The optionsagtedare valid for 5
years and exercisable #e following vesting conditions after the secomuhigersary fromthe grant
date. Under he termof the pln, share options are granted at an exercise price equal to or ribaless
its net value per shaees rgported in the fimncial reports for the nsb recent fiscal period audited by the
CPA at the ssuedate. Forany subsequ# changesn the sibsidia r ycé@p#al structure, the exercise
price is adjusted according to the tstnThe subsidiary resolved thbstribute cash dividnds in the

s h ar e hmeéetmhgin 8020. Thus, the exercise price wassaeflfrom $18.3to $17.7 inAugust
2020
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The Ratio of

Entitled
Exercise (%)
Vegding Conditions (Accumulated)
The seond anniversary from the gradie 50
The thid anniversary from the gradate 75
The fourth anniversary from the gratdte 100

Information on compenatory enployee shae options issued in April 2016 was follows:

Number of
Options (In
Thousands of Exercise Price
Employee Share Options Units) %)

Grantal in April 2016 2,318 $ 23

Weightedaverage fair valie of optims granted h April 2016
(NTS) $ 50.97

Employee share options certificatesthat the subsidiary issued wasexpred in April 2021, the
information was as follows:

For the Nine Months Ended
September30, 2021

Number of
Options
(In Thousands  Exercise Price

ShareOptions Certificates of Units) (%)
Balance aflanuary 1 350
Options a&erdsed (50
Options eypired (300
Balance aBeptembeB0 -
Options exercisable, end of period - $17.7

The sibddiary measuredemployee slare options by using the BlackcholesMerton Option Pricing
Model, andhe inputs to the models weas Dllows:

Share pice at tle grant date $73.21
Exercise pice $23
Expected volatility (%) 31.0931.92
Expected live (years) 3545
Expeded dvidend yield (%) -
Expected grant (%) 100
Risk free interest raté4) 0.530.58

The employedeneft expenses recoigzed onthe employeehare ption planswere both$0 thousand
for the threeand ninemonths ended Seghber 30,2021.
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c. Employee &are gotionsplan of the sibsidiary- YFY Jupter (BVI) Inc.

In order to attact and etain the professonal talents neesl by the subsidiay, improving the
empbyees 6 c o h e s i @mhbelangingness &dwe subsidiary and jointly creae the interestsof
subsidiary and sharehlalers, the boardfaliredors d the subsidiary reslved to ssue 54400 emplyee
share optiongn Septenber 2021 Eachoption entiles the holder to subscrib&r 1 ordinary sharefo
YFY Jupiter (BVI) Inc. The eligible paticipants for share optons arethe full-time empbyees
(includng the controlling companiesand subdadinate caonpanies) who meetceriin ecific
requirrments. Theptions grantedfor 3 yearsand theexercisable athe schedule belw since the grant
date For ary subsquent charges in tle subsidaryd s  al auplus, the exercise pricas adjustd
accordngly.

The Raio of
Entitl ed
Exercise @0)
Vesting Conditions (Accumulated)

Issue date 50
Thefirst anniversary fronthe g-ant date 80
The seond amiversary from the gant date 100

Information acn compensatory emplyee shareptionsissuedn September 2021 veaasfollows:

Number of
Options
(In Thousands ExercisePrice
Employee Share Options of Units) (USS)
Grantd n Septemler 2021 544 $ 15
Weightedaverage fa value ofoptions granted ilseptember
2021 (USY) $ 1.2

Informationfor empbyee shee optons ertificateshat the subsidiary issued was as follows:

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2022

Number of
Options
(In Thousands  Exercise Rice

Share Options Certifi cates of Units) (USS$)
Balanceat January 1 544
Options eercised (229
Balance aBeptembeB0 317

Optionsexercigble, end operiod 317 $ 15
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The subsdiary measured enipyee share optns by using the Back-ScholesMerton Option Ficing
Model, and the ingts tothe modek wee asfollows:

Sharepriceat the grant datéUS9 $3.54
Exercise pricg(US$) $1.5
Expecedvolatility (%) 35.2135.62
Expectd lives (years) 3
Expected diviendyield (%) -
Expected gran(%) 100
Risk freeinterest rate (%o 0.17-0.21

The enmployee beneft expensesecanized on the employee share option plarere2,709thousand
and $9,131thousandfor thethree and ninemonhsendedSeptembeB0, 202, repectively.

27. DERECOGNITIO N OF SUBSIDIARY

The subsidary, KunshanYFY Advertising am Printing Co., Ltd., enterethe bankruptcy procedurie
January 2021The tristee in bankuptcy was apinted by the court. The Group no longer has the tghidi
direct Kunshan YFY Advertisingand Printing Co., Id., due to loss focontiol. Thus, theGroup
derecognizethe assets and liabilities tife former subsidiary.

a. Consieration reeived from derecogtition

Kunshan YFY
Advertising and
Printing Co.,
Ltd.

Cash $ -
b. Analysisof assets and lialities on the losof control date

Kunshan YFY
Advertising and

Printing Co.,
Ltd.

Current assets

Cash $ 230

Other curert as®ts,others 399
Current liabilities

Accounts payala! (25,340

Other current liabities, others (9,87))
Noncurrent liabil ities

Other noncurrent lidilities, others (2
Netliabilities derecognized $(34,589
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c. Gain from deecognition of subsidiary

Kunshan YFY
Advertising and

Printing Co.,
Ltd.
Net liabilities derecognied $ 34,584
Effect of foreign curency exchange diéfences (212
Gain from derecognition of subsidiafgccounted fo as othe income,others) $ 34,372

d. Net cash outflow oderecogniton of subsidiary

Kunshan YFY
Advertising and

Printing Co.,
Ltd.
Consideration eceived in cash $ -
Less: Cash balandereognizedof (230
$ (20

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBIDIARY

In July 2021, the board of directors betsubdliary, Yuen Foong Shop Co.id., resolvedo dispse allits
ownesship of Shanghai Y International Trde Co., Ltd. The contract wasgned in August 2021. The
Group ompleted tle disposalin Augug 2021 and lIst control of the subsidiary. Theles proeeds of
RMB20 thousand weraifly collected in Sefgmber 2021.

a. Consideration recered from disposals

Shanghai YFY
International
Trade Co., Ltd.

Cash $ 86
b. Analysis d assés ard liabilities on the loss of control date

ShanghaiYFY
Int ernational

Trade Co., Ltd.
Current assets

Cash $ 219

Accounsreceivablenet 2,098

Othe current assets, others 6,565
Noncurrent assets

Other norcurrent asses, otheis 472
Current liabilities

Other payables, othe (7,099

Other current liabities, others (3,699
Netliabilitiesdisposed $ (1,44)
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c. Gainondisposabf subsidiay

Shanghai YFY
International
Trade Co., Ltd.

Consideationreceived $ 86
Net liabilities disposed 1,441
Effect of foreign currency edhange differences 236
Gainondisposalof subgdiary $ 1,763

d. Net cash outflow odisposl of subsidiary

Shanghai YFY
Intern ational
Trade Co., Ltd.

Consideration received in cash $ 86
Less Cash balare disposed of (219

$ (133

29. EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
a. Arizon RFID Technology (Cayman) Co., Ltd.

For theninemonths eded Septemér 30, 222

The Groupsold its partial owership ofArizon RAD Techrology (Cayman) Co.Ltd. in August, 2022
Thus, the sharadiding ratio of he Group iPArizon RFID Technology (Cayman) Co., Lwas reduced
to 69.8%%, which include its shat®lding ratio of 69.55% in ¥Y Global Investment B.V., 0.15% in
YFY Development Corp. and 0.15% in YFY Paradigm Investment Co., respgctivel

The above transactions weaecoungéd fa as equity tansactions since the Group did not cease to have
control owerthe sisidiary.

Arizon RFID
Technology
(Cayman) Co.,
Ltd.

Corsideration received $ 773,540

Relatedexperse (60,583
The proportionate share of the carrying amount ofrteeassets of the subsidiary

transferred to nowontrdling inteleds (598,788

Reattrbution of other eqty from noncontrollinginterests
Exchange diffeences a trandation of foreign financal statements (32,409
Differences recognizeddm equity transactions $ 81,764

Line items adjustedor equty transations

Capital surplus difference between cagiterationreceived or pai@ndthe carrying

A

amount of the subsidia e s 6 net assets during a $ 81,764
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b. Shin Foong Specialty anpplied Materials @., Ltd.

For theninemonthsended September 30, 2021

The Company dispsad of its partialownership of Shin Fbong Specialty and Applied Nkxials Co., Ltd.
for theninemonths ended September 30, 2021.sThine shareholding ratio di¢ Groupn Shin Feng
Specalty andApplied Magrials Co., Ltd. was reduced to 48%.

The alove transactions we accounted for agquity transactions sincealeroup did not cease to have
control over the subsidiary.

Shin Foong
Specialty and
Applied
Materials Co.,
Ltd.
Consderationreceived $ 252,383
The proportionate share of thanying amount oftienet assets of th subsidiary
transferred to on-controlling interests (56,526
Reattribution of other eqtyi from noncontrolling intersts
Exchange diferenceson transation of foreign financial statements (5
Differences recognizedom equity transations 195,852

Line items adjusted for equity transactions

Capital surplus difference between consideratimteiveal or paid adthe carying
amountofthes ubsi di ari es 6 netosabosasqisiton d ur $ 195,852

c. Willpower Industries Ltd.

For theninemonths ended September 30, 2021

The Groupacquired all shares of Willpower Industries Lwwned by Grea Pacific Investmats
Limited in thethreemonths ended September 30220Thus, the shareholdingtio of the Group in
Willpower Industries Ltd. wasincreasd from 55.2% to 100%.

The aboveransactions were accounted for as equity transactione theGroup did not ceae to have
control over the subsidiary.

Willpower
ndustries Ltd.

Consiceraton paid $ (1,790,062
The propotionate share of the carrying amount of the net asddhe subsidiary

transferred to nowontrolling nterests 1,050,467
Differencesrecognized from equity transactions $ (688605

Line itemsadjugedfor equity transactions

Retined earnings $ (688,609
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30. CAPITAL MANAGE MENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure thétien in he Group will be ale to coninue as going
concerns while maximizing thesturn to stakeholdershtough the optimization of the debt and egy
balance. The capital structure of the Group issof net debt (borrowings offset by cash and cash
equivalentg and equty of the Group (coprising issued capital, reserves, retaieahings, other equity
and ron-controlling interests).
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair value of financial instrunmés that are not measured at fair value
The managem of the Goup congders tha the carryng amoung of those financial assets and
finarcial liabilities thatare nd measured afair value recognizedn the consolidated financial
statements approximatieeir fair values or their fair values cannot beaw®y measued.
b. Fair valueof finandal instruments that are measured at¥alueon a recurring basis

1) Far value hierachy

September 30, 22

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative financial
assets $ - $ 483132 $ - $ 48312
Mutual funds 430,688 - - 430,688
Structured deposits - 253,883 - 253883
$ 430,688 $ 737015 $ - $ 1,167,703
Financial assets at FVTO(
Equity instruments
Domedic listed shares $ 20,355056 $ - % - $ 20355,05%
Domestic and foreign
unlistedshares - - 5,733,870 5,733,80
$ 203%0% $ - $ 5,733870 $ 26,088,926
Financal liabilities at
FVTPL
Derivative financial
liabilities $ - % 23664 $ - % 23,664
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December 31, 202

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative fnarcial
assets $ - % 3,792 $ - % 3,792
Mutual funds 1,516927 - - 1516,927
Structured deposits - 1,505,742 - 1,505,742
$ 151697 $ 150954 $ - $ 3,026461
Financial assets at FVTO(
Equity instruments
Domesticlisted shares $ 18,749,895 $ - % - $ 18,749,195
Domestic and foreign
unlistedshares - - 4,845,794 4,845,794
$ 1878195 $ - $ 4845794 $ 23594,989
Financd liabilities at
FVTPL
Derivaive financial
liabilities $ - % 69687 $ - 3 69,6887

September 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asss at FVTPL
Derivative financih
assets $ - % 524 % - % 524
Mutual funds 1,287,737 - - 1,287,737
Structurel depaits - 1,443,151 - 1,443,151
$ 1287,B7 $ 1,443,675 $ - $ 2731412
Financial assets at FVTO
Equity instruments
Domesticlisted shares $ 16,753,694 $ - % - $ 16,753694
Domestic anddreign
unlistedshares - - 5,065,294 5,065,294
16,753,694 $ - $ 5,06524 21,818,988
Financialliabilities at
FVTPL
Derivative financial
liabilities $ - 3 46,116 $ - 3 46,116

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for thewonis ended Semmber 302022 and
2021
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2) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurentgeof finandal instruments

For the nine monthaneled ®ptember 30, 22

Balance at January 1, 2ZD2

Recognized in other comprehensiveome(accounted for as unrealized gain
(losses) on investments in equity nhstruments designated at FVTOCI)

Disposas

Effect of foreign currency exchange differences

Balance aBeptember 30, 2@2

For the nine months ended September28@1

Financial Assets

at FVTOCI

Equity
Instruments

$ 4,845,794
992,337

(116,389
12,128

$ 5,733,80

Financial Assets

at FVTOCI
Equity
Instr uments
Balance at January 1,20 $ 4,962,778
Recognized in other comprehensineome(accounted foes unrealized gam
(los=es) on investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI) 255,288
Dispaosals (78840
Reurnofcapith upon investees6 capital | (64,259
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences (9,669
Balance at Septereb 30, 2021 $ 5,065,294
3) Valuation techniques and inputs usednake Lewel 2 fair value neasuremen
Financial Instruments Valuation Technigues ard Inputs
Structured deposits Discounted cash flow method: The futuraltflow is estimated

based on the observable interest rate at the end of the perioc
discounéd at the nauket interest rée.

Derivatives- foreign Thefair value of each derivative contrastdetermined using the
exchange forward discounted cash fl@ method and(a) The average exchange r:
contractsand curency (i.e.,differencebaween he highst and the lowest exchga
exchangeontracts rates) of t himancalmgitationsin gr@ndande e

with the Reuters quoting system, or (heTdaily spot exchange
rate quoted by finacial institutions.
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4) Valuation techniques andputs usedo makeLevel 3fair value measurement

Financial Instruments

Valuation Techniquesand Inputs

Domestic ad foreign
unlisted shares

Assetbased pproach: The fair value determined based on the
asset value of the investment tar@éte significant unolservable

inputs are discountedipes based on market liglity and
non-controlling interests.

Market approach: The fair value is assdsaccording to the recer
transaction price of the investment target or similar market
transaction pricesand maket corditions. The significant
unobservable inputs adéscouned priesfor the lak of
marketaMity.

Income approach: Discountedshelows are determined based o
the present value of the expected future economic berefits t
will be derived from theinvestnent. Unobservale inputs mainly
include the longerm growh rate, discount rate drithe discount
of liquidity. The fair valuewill increase if the longerm growth
rate increases, discount rate decreases or the digoount
liquidity decrases

c. Categoies of financal instruments

Financial assets

FVTPL

Mandatorily classified as at FVTPL
FVTOCI
Amortized cost (1)

Financial liabilities

FVTPL
Held for trading
Amortized cost (2)

September 30,
2022

$ 1,167,703
26,088,926
30,292,521

23,664
62,673,922

Decanber 31,
2021

$ 3,026,446
23,594,989
29,260,271

69,687
62,613,498

September 30,

2021

$ 2,73,412

21,818,988
28,345,799

46,116
62,020402

1) The talances include financial asseteasued at amorized cost,which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, notes ceivable, net, accounts receivabhlaet,accounts receivaldedue from related

parties, netnd other fnandal assets

2) The balances incl financial liabilities measuredt eaamortzed cost, widh comprise current
borrowings, shorterm notes antills payabls, notes and accounts payable, accounts payéble
related parties, other pables and long-term borrowings (including currentportion of long-term

borrowings)
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d. Financial isk management objectives and policies

The Group6s nmaricial risk manggenent avds tof manage the market risk related to
operating ativity (including foreigncurrengy risk, interst rae risk and otér price risk), creditisk and
liquidity risk. To reduce the potential and detrimental influence of the fitions in market on the
Groupbs financi al per f or maentfy andyzehand efdnate nelgied wa s
finandal risk factor whith may lead to unfavorébeffect onthe financal performance of the Group,

and conduct related program to loveed hedge financial risk.

The Group seeks to minimize the effects of theslkes by usingboth derivdive ard non-derivative
financial instrurants to avoid risk exgaures. The us of finarcial instruments was governed by the
Groupbs pol i ctheebwardaoh girectors, evlich Iprgvided written principles on foreign
exchang risk, interestate risk,creditrisk, the usef financial derivéives and norderivative financial
instrumeits, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with paligiel exposure limits was
reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuoasid The Grouplid not enér into or trade financial
instruments, drivative financial istruments, foispecuative purposes.

1) Market risk

The Groupbds ac trimarily toithe sinaneial piskssoé changes in foreign currency
exchange rateinterest rateand equityprices

a) Foreigncurrency risk

The Goup had foreign currey denominatd asset and liabilities, which exposed it primarily

to the financial riskof changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group used foreign
exchamge forward conacts and arrrency exchange conticts to eliminte the risk of foreign
currency exposureTheseforeign exchange forward contracts are intended to reduce the
influence of the exchange rate fluctuations onthe Giosip i nc o me .

Sensitivity analysis

For the poportion of financial assets a liabilities that had signifcant influence on the Grqu
therisk was measured by considering the net position of foreign cyrferveard contractsand
currency exchange ctracts that are undue.

The Group wasnainly exposel to the USD ard RMB.

The fdlowing table detdis t he Gr oup6s «eagesd dedreasetinytidevo a
Taiwan dollar (i.e., the functionaturreng) against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
represents man a gfehmmeasnaldyposible shangeis foreignexchange rate.
The sensitivity analysis included onlyutstarding foreign forward currency denominated
monetary items anddjuststheir translation at the end of the reportperiod for a 5% change

in foreign curency raes. A negaive numler below indiates andecrease inpretax profit
associated wittNew Taiwan dollars strengthening 5% against tlSD andRMB. For a5%
weakeningof New Taiwan dollarsagainst the USD andN®B, there would be an equal and
opposte impact o pre-tax pofit andthe balancebelow would be negfive.

For the Nine Months Ended

Septenber 30
2022 2021
Influence to profit or loss &% variarce
uUsD $ (139,08) $ (61,229
RMB $ (105564) $ (85,063
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b) Interestrate risk

The Goupwas &posedto interest rate sk from borrowing at both fixed arftbating interest
rates.

The carrying amount assts and filmancialiabiitieg \bitk exposureaon ¢ i
interest rées at tle end of the eporting pewd were adollows:

September 30, December31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021

Fairvalue interest rate risk

Financial assets $ 8,822,®5 $ 7,338411 $ 7,100,091

Financial liabilifes 11,018218 9,296,157 13,865010

Lease liabities 710,574 649623 550,318
Cash flow interestate risk

Financial assets 5,508,168 4,313,350 4,922,053

Financial liabilities 36,341,49 36,657,474 32,561,748

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitiviy analysisbelow was determined a s e d 0 n s &xposure G irdevept dates

for non-derivaive instruments ahe end of the repang period. Fo floating rae liabilities, the
analysis was prepared assuming the amount of each liability outstariding end 6 the
reporting periodwas outstanding fathe whole year. A 0.25% basis pbincrease or decrease

was used when reportingnierest rate isk intenally to key management personnel and
represents management 6s alschangesingesttatesf t he r

If interest rates halleen 0.25% basis point higher/lowand al other variables we held
constant, the&sro u p 6 stax profisfor the nine months ended September ZlIR2 and 2021
would have decreased/increasedbdg,250thousand ad $41 460 thousand, repectively.

c) Other piice risk
The Group was expoddo eqity and commaodit price risk throughts investmentsn equity
secuities and mutual fundd’he management of the Group manages risk by holding different
risk patfolios.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity arlgsesbelow were determined based the &posure to equitand commodity
price iisks at the ed of the r@orting period.

If equity and commodity prices had been 5% higher/lowertgrteprofit for the ime months
ended September 302022 and 2021vould have ncreased/decreased $81,534thousan and
$64,387thousand, respectively, as a result of the chaingdair value of financial assets at
FVTPL, and the préax other comprehensive income for theeninonths eded Spiember 30,
202 and 2021would have increaed/decreased b$1,304446 thousand and$1,090,949
thousand, respectively, as a result of the gkaim fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

The Groupb6s sensi t iddudringyre period whichiwasmalty idue ko the n c r
fair value of equif investmentsncreased.
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2)

3)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpavtyl default on its contractual obligations resulting

in a financial loss to the Group. As #@ie end ofthe reporting period,t he Gr oupds m
exposure to cradrisk, whichwill causea financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties, is arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognized
financial asds which comprise reeivables from opating activitiesand financialassés from
investing activities as stated in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Groupbs customer base is vast and va&riou
financialconditions of those ustomers.

To maintin the quality 6the accountseceivable,the Group has built a credit risk management
procedure to reducthe credit risk from specific customer. The credit evaluation of individual
customer includesansideringfactors that will affect its payment alitly such as finacial condition
past trangction records and current economic conditions.

Credit risk of nkdeposits, fixed income investments and other financial instruments with banks
is evaluatd and monitred ty th e  Gr onangiél depdrtinentSince the countparties are
creditworthy banks and financial institutions with good credit rating, thuerdh no significant
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The objective of liquidity risk managentds to mantain adequate cash ahcash equivalentsith
high liquidity and sufficentbank faclities that business operation requires and to ensure the Group
hassufficient financial flexibility.

As of September 30, 2022, December 31, 2021 and Septe8@pbe021 the anourts of unused
financing facilitieswere $59,600,936housanl, $54,758140 thousand andh52,579,010thousand,
respectively.

The following tabledet ai | s t he Groupdbés remai ni rAdgrivative nt r
financial liabilities with agreed remyment periods ¥ financial institdions. The tables have bee
drawn up basedon the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities from thgiest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables included both intergstranyghl cash flows.
Specifically, loans with a repanent on demand clause weincluded in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the finandiadtitutes choosing to exercise their rights.

To the extent that interest cash flows paidlaating ate, the undiscounted mount was derived
from the interest rate cu\at tke end of he reporting period.

September 30, 2@2

Less than
1 Year 1-5Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Floating interest ratkabilities $ 10,466,744 $ 27,230,2®% $ 33795
Fixed inteest rate liabilities 11,025,@0 - -
Lease iabilities 239./93 408006 113,935

$ 21,731,87 $ 27638211 $ 147,731
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December 31, 202

Less han
1 Year 1-5Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Floating interest rate liabilities $ 10,603,742 $ 26,841,044 3 740,602
Fixed interest rate lialiiies 9,299,000 - -
Lease liabilities 195,128 353,76 136,358

$ 20097870 $ 27194810 $ 876,960

September 30, 2021

Less than
1 Year 1-5Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Floating interest rate liabilities $ 12,301,601 $ 20,841737 $ 741,813
Fixed interest rate liabilities 13,876,000 - -
Lease liabilities 169,899 306,069 106,776

$ 26,347,500 $ 21,147,806 $ 848,589

e. Transfers of financial assets

The Group transferred portion of its ban k e r deptancabdls in mainland China to other bank in
order to generate working capital. As the Group has transferredastidist all risks and reards
relating to these bills receivable, it derecognized the full carrying antbuhe bakerd s cegatance

bills. TheGr oupb6s di scount ed the rmdgesroeinteecst vaeswera asdollows: a n d

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2022 2021
The discounted amount $ 2,097,080 $ 907410
The received mount $ 2064,23 $ 888,166
Interest rates 1.28%-4.30% 2.65%-4.30%

32. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balances and transactions weéen the Company and its subiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated omamidation and ae not diclosedin this note.Besides information
disclosed elswherein the other notes, etails of transactions between the Graum other related parties
are disclosed below.

a. Names and categories of related partie

Related Party Relationship with the Group
Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. Entity with key managerentpersnnel
Yuen Feng Paper Co., Ltd. Entity with key maagement personnel
(Continued)
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Related Party

Relationship with the Group

Taiwan Global BioFud Co., Ltd.(Note 1)
YFY Biotech Co., Ltd.

E Ink Holdings Inc.

YuarHan Materials Inc.

Transcend @tronics(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd.
Chengdu JieLianDa Warehousing Co., Ltd.
Chengdu JingShiTanPacking Co., Ltd.
JLD Logidics Ltd.

YJY Packagind-td.

Vinh PhuPackingand Printing Company Limited
SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
SinoPac SecuriteeCorporation

SinoPac Leasing Corpation

Bank Sind?ac

Beautone Co., Ltd.

Hsinex International Corp.

Fu Hwa Developrent Enterprise Co., Ltd
Hsin-Yi Foundation

YFY BioTechnolgy (Kunsha) Co., Ltd.
YFY Green Food ($hanghai) Co., Id. (Note 2)
Lui Co., Ld.

Hsin Yuan Investment Co., Ltd.

Ho-Jielai Ca, Ltd.

Chen Yu Co., Ltd.

Ho Tien Co., Ltd.

Hoi Toy&Play Coporation

YFY Co., Ltd.

Synmax Biochemical CoLtd.

Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Assodate

Assodate

Substantive related pg

Substanve related party

Substantive retad party

Sulstantive elated party

Substative rebted party

Substantive relategarty

Substantive related party

Substantive feted party

Substantive related party

Substantive related party

Substantive relate party

Substative related party

Substantie relatedoarty

Substantive Hated paty

Substantive related party

Substative related pay

Substantive related party

Siubdgantiverelated jarty

Substantre relate party
(Concluded)

Notel: Taiwan GlobalBioFund Co., Ltd.was liquidatedin September 2021 Therefore, only the
transaction®ccurredprior to liquidationwere listed.

Note2:

The subsidiary of YFY Biotech Co., Itd. disposedof pattia shaeholding of YFY Green Food

(Shanghai) Co, Ltd. in 2021 Due tolose contol of YFY Green Foal (Shangh# Co., Ltd.,
associae turedinto subgtantive elaedpartysine 2022.

. Operatingevenue

For the Three Months Erded

For the Nine Months Endal

September 30 September 30
Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021 2022 2021
Substantive related party $ 32530 $ 46,008 $ 110,262 $ 125591
Entitieswith key maragenen
personnel 17,38 19,292 67944 64,081
Associate 9,892 6,680 32,412 48,400
$ 59805 $ 71,99 $ 210,618 $ 238,02

For sales of goods or providing services kadiw related parties, thgices andterms d receivables

were baed on the agements beveen parties.
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c. Purdases of goods

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021 2022 2021
Associae $ 76,239 $ 49,252 $ 164,403 $ 176,712
Substantive dated paty 4,132 1,168 9,705 3,913
Entitieswith key management
personnel 630 253 1,737 2,251
$ 81,001 $ 50673 $ 175845 $ 182,876

For purhases & goodsbetweenrelatedparties, the prices and terro$ payabls wee based orthe

agreenents between parties.
d. Receivablesrbm related parties

Related Party

Line Item Category/Name

Receivables from
relatedparies

Substantive related party
Beautone Co., Ltd.
Others

Entitieswith key
managemernpersonnel
Yuen Foong Paper Co

Ltd.
Others

Associate
Transcend Optronics
(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd
Others

Othe receivables
(accountd for as
othercurrent
assetp

Entitieswith key
management persoain

Associate

Substantive related party
Ho Tien Co, Ltd.
Others

The oustandingaccounts receivable fromelatedpartiesare unsecured and no expected credidses

shauld be reogrized after estimating.
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2022

$ 23474
4,065
27539

17,326

230
17556

4,542

4,966
9,508

$ 54,603
$ 2214
647

34
354

$ 325

2021

$ 26,839
4,449
31,288

30,22

208
30,500

7,717

1,898
9,615

$ 71,403
$ 23
435
26,520

109
26,629

$ 27,08

September 30, December 31, September30,

2021

$ 26,886
11,399
38285
19,214

237
19,451

5,464

2,538
8,002

$ 65,738
$ 52
245

38

38

$ 335



e. Payables to related parties

Line Item

Related Party
Category/Name

Payables toelated Assodate

parties YJY Packaging Ltd.
JLD Logistics Ltd.
Others
Entitieswith key
management personnel
Substantive related party
Other payables Associate
(accountedor as  YJY Packaging Ltd.
othercurrent Othes
liabiliti es)

2022

$ 87,972
9,876
2,856

100,704

6,446
5,669

$ 112,819

2021

$ 32503
9,003
4,746

46,252

8,646
2,114

$ 57,012

$ 6,74
415

$ 7169

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2021

$ 47,644
8,482
4,014

60,14

8,350
2,203
$ 70,693

$ 13,3

$ 13,332

The outstanding @aounts pgablesto related péaties are unsecured.
f. Acquisitions ofinvestment proerties

For the Nine Months Ended

Sepember 30
Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Substantie related party
Ho Tien Co. Ltd. $ 53,032 $ -

The companycompleted tansfer d ownership of a joint consiction of housing in Februg 2022,
refer to Notel8.

g. Acquisitons of financial assets

For theninemonths endedepemtier 30, 2021

Related Party

Category/ Number of Underlying
Name Line Item Shares Assets Proceeds Note

Associate Currentandnon-current 1,651000 Ordinary share $ 75,025 -
financial assets at fa
value through otlre
comprehensive
income(loss)

Associate Currentand norcurrent 20,014,552 Ordinaryshaes 470,150  (Note)
financial assets dair
value throughother
comprehensive
income(loss)

$ 545,175
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Note: Tawan Global BioFund Co., Ltd. wdgjuidated in Septembe2021,andthe remaining assets

were distributedin accordane with the proportion of the original shareholdeéscapital

contributon.
Others

Rental income

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

Septembe 30 Sepember 30
Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021 2022 2021
Entitieswith key managene
personnk
Yuen Foowy Paper Co., Ltd $ 1971 $ 1944 $ 5,914 $ 5,913
Others 36 39 116 119
2,007 2,003 6,030 6,032
Substative related party 1,448 1,802 4520 5,405
Associate 2,360 394 3,134 997
$ 585 $ 419 $ 13,73 $ 12434

Rental expenses (accounfedas operatig expenses)

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

Sepember 30 September 30
Related Paty Category/Name 2022 2021 2022 2021
Entitieswith key management
personnel $ 11,38 $ 1117 $ 335% $ 33,62
Substative related paty 1,089 1,093 3,267 3,114
$ 12478 $ 12267 $ 36862 $ 36,36

Depenling on theagreemets, rental income and expses were recedd orpaid by per month or per

half-year.

Compensation of key managentpersonnel

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2022 2021 2022 2021
Shortterm employee benefits $ 26425 $ 26,215 $ 77,030 $ 75,809
Pog-employment begfits 109 92 336 6,204
$ 26,534 $ 26,307 $ 77,366 $ 82,013

The remuneration of diremts and key execwies was degrmined ly the remuneration committedth

regard tahe performancef individuals and market trends
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33.

35.

ASSETS PLEDGEDOR MORTGAGED

The following a&sets have beeledged or mortgaged as collateral for bank loans, gtesprovided on
certain commiments, lank acceptance bills and otheedit faciities:

Sepember 30, December 31, September 30,

2022 2021 2021

Notes receivable, néNote) $ 3,059,129 $ 2,917520 $ 3,119,121
Property, plant andgglipmert 512,41 719649 742,684
Pledged time deposifaaccounted forasother

current financial assets and other fomrent

assets, othej 800,580 145738 68,490
Pledged deposis (classifiedasothercurrent

financial asse)s 113,492 202,762 306,644
Land use rightsgccounted for as righdf-use

asets) 105,382 98,253 99,338

$ 4591,64  $ 408392  $ 4,336,477

Note: The tansaction of ,503,579%housand has been elimated in prepang the cosolidated financial
on Sepember30,2022

SIGNIFICANT COMMITME NTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of September 30, 2022, Decemlit, 021 and Septembe80, 202, unused lettersof credit for
purchases of raw materials and machinequipnent amounted to gpoximately $733,472thousand,
$686,264thousand an&953,487thousand, respectively.

As of September 3®022, December31, 2021 and September 3@021, the cotract of commitrent to
acqgure land, property, plant and equipment amounted$312,238thousad, $296822 thousand and
$269,172thousandrespectivelyTheunrecorded amountaere$162,545thousand$154,687thousandind
$249,731thousand respectively.

OTHER ITEMS

In responsdo the COVID19 pandemic, the epidemic pretien policies of sme countries werechanged
by adopting the approach of cagtence \ith the \rus. Due to the decrease in demand of-apitemic
conceptproducit he Gr oup 6 s r egprefitdeaeasedia thbirggeartex of 2022 compared
to the same periodf dhe prevous year. The Groupwill continue to evaluate the impaof subsequet
epidemic events ongtoperations.
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36. SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINAT  ED IN FOREIGN

CURRENCIES

The Groupentitie®significant fnancial assets andhbilities denomiated in foreign currenceaggregated
by the faeign currenas other thn the functioal currenciesand the related exchange ratestween
foreign currencieand respectiveuihctional currencies were as follow:

September 30,2022

Foreign
Currency Carrying
(In Thousands) Exchange Rate Amount
Foreigncurrency assets
Monetary items
RMB $ 2,528,994 0.140& (RMB:USD) $ 11,306,469
uUsD 113,210 31.75(USD:NTD) 3,594431
Foreign curency liabiities
Monetary items
UsD 36,033 31.75(USD:NTD) 1,144,046
December31,2021
Foreign
Currency Carrying
(In Thousands) Exchange Rate Amount
Foreign currencyssets
Monetary iems
RMB $ 2497733 0.157(RMB:USD) $ 10,843,866
uUsD 77,491 27.68(USD:NTD) 2,144,960
VND 1,120,487,49C 0.00004 (VND:USD) 1,358,762
RMB 258,936 4.341 (RMB:NTD) 1,124,165
Foreign currency ligilities
Monetaly items
uUsD 54,271 27.68(USD:NTD) 1,5@,223
VND 1,001,490,38 0.00004(VND:USD) 1,214,459
uUsD 37,152 6.3757 (USD:RMB) 1,028,369
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September 302021

Foreign
Currency Carrying
(In Thousands) Exchange Rate Amount
Foreign currency assets
Monetay items
RMB $ 2,445,461 0.154 (RMB:U®) $ 10501449
RMB 255,246 4.294 (RMB:NTD) 1,096095
uUsD 110,066 27.85 (USD:NTD) 3,065,331
Foreign currencyiabilities
Monetary items
uUsD 70,796 27.85 (USD:NTD) 1,971,679

For the three andine monthserded September 3@2022 and 2021realized and wuealized net foeign
exchange gains (losses) were a lok$402,727thousanda lossof $68,889thousanda loss 0f$935,093
thousand ana lossof $172,714 housandrespectively. It is imprdical to disclose net foreign exchange
gains (losses) by eadgnificant foreign currency due to the variety of th@dgn currercy transagbns
and functional currencies of the entities of the Group.
37. SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS
a. Information abousignificant transactions:
1) Financing provided to otherflable 2)
2) Endorsements/guarantees provided. (T8bple
3) Marketable seatties hetl (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates jaimd controled
entities). (Table 4)
paicin capital. (Takt 5

5) Acquisition of individud real estate at costs of at least NT$300 million of@20f the paiein
capital.(Nong

6) Disposal ofindividual real estate at prices of at least NT$300 millio2@% of thepaid-in capital.
(Nong

7) Total purchase from or saés to relatd partiesamountng to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital.(Table6)

8) Receivables from rated parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% efpidud-in
capital. (Tabler)

9) Trading inderivativeinstruments (Note7)

10) Intercanpanyrelationships and significant intercompany trarisas. (Tabé 10)

- 63 -



b. Information on investegd able8)

c. Information on investments in mainland China

1) Information on any investee compain manland China, showng the name, princgh busines
activities, paidin capital, method of investmentnward and outard remittance of funds,

ownershippercentage, net income of investees, investment income océwsgng amount of the

investmen at theend d the period, repatriations of imestmentmcome,and limit on the amount of
investment in the mialand China eea. (Table9)

2) Any of the follonving significant transactions with investee companies in mahlChina, either

directly or irdirectly throuch a thid paty, and their pricegpayment ¢rms, and unrealized gains or

losses:

a) The amountad percentagef purchases and the balance and@atage of the related payables
at the end of the period. (Ne)

b)

the end of the period. (Tab&

c)
d)

endof the perod ard the purposes. (Table 3)

e)

The amount and percexgle of sales anthe alance ad percentage of thelated reeivables at

Theamount of proprty transactions and the amountia# resultant gains or losses. (None)

The balance of ne@iable instrument endorsemsnbr guarantees pledges of ollateral at the

interest with respect to finamg o funds. (Table 2)

f) Other transactionshat have a naterial effect on theorofit or lossfor the period or on the

financial position, sut as the rending or receiving of services. (Neh

d. Information of major shareholdeteList all shareholderwith ownership of 5% or gréer showing the

The highest balamg the end operiod balance, the interest ratge, and total current period

name & the shaeholder, the numbeof sharesowned, and percentage of ownership of each

shareholder(Table11)

38. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The follovingwas a n

For theninemonthsended September 30022

Revenue from external custorse

Revenue from otheinternal operating segment
Segmenhrevenue

Eliminations

Consolidatedevenue

Total profitor loss for eportable segments

Eliminations

Segment pofit or loss

Finance costs

Netgainon fair value change dihancial
instruments at fair value through profit or los

Foreign exchange loss

Net noroperathg income and epenss

Profit before inome tax

anal ysis of t

Business Unit of

Container - Container -

Business Unit of

h e Gortade pegnsentr evenue

Business Unit of Board and Board and Busines Unitof ~ Business Unit of
Pulp and Fine Packaging in Packaging in Consumer Special
Paper Taiwan Mainland China Products Materials Other Segment Total
$ 15,544,661 $ 14012394 $ 13,438,82 $ 7,347,106 $ 1,230,809 $ 8,712,6® $ 60,286,282
2,367,583 1,351,906 150,754 38.640 190645 549,477 4,648685
$ 17,911924 $ 15,364,300 $ 1358938 $ 7,385,746 $ 1,421454 $ 9,262,157 64,934,967
(4,648,685
$ 60,286,282
$ 142,177 $ 518,604 $  (698415) $ 731,260 $ 217,620 $ 167,873 $ 1079119
73,%9
1,152,688
(578,579
906,038
(935,093
289750
$ 34425
(Continued)
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Container - Container -
Business Unit of Board and Board and Busines Unitof ~ Business Unit of
Pulp and Fine Packaging in Packaging in Consumer Special
Paper Taiwan Mainland China Products Materials Other Segment Total

For the nine months end&éptember 30, 2021
Revenue fom external customsr $ 13,464,368 $ 13411,014 $ 14,223,692 $ 7,231,97 $ 7,004960 $ 8,309162 $ 63,651113
Revenue from othemiternal operating segmeni 2,930,698 1,708,980 247,330 15,0% 220,077 599,881 5,722,000
Segmentevenue $ 16,3%,066 $ 15119,994 $ 14,477,022 $ 7,246,952 $ 7,225,0% $ 8,9M,08 69,373114
Eliminations (5,722,003
Consolidated revenue $ 63,651,113
Total profitor loss fo repatable segments $ 586,070 $ 1,742,588 $ (128,799 $ 971,722 $ 4,043962 $ 16,381 $ 7,231,929
Eliminations 18,678
Segmenprofit or loss 7,250,607
Finance costs (404,80)
Netloss a fair value chage of financial

instrumentsat fair valuethrough profit or loss (93,270
Foreignexchange loss (172,719
Net nonroperating income and expenses 2,158,86
Profit before income tax $ 8,738,579

(Concluded)

BusinessUnit of

BusinessUnit of

The Goup chssifiedts products intdhreesegmens in accordance with thetharacteristics as follows:

a. Pulp and fine paper segment

Manufacture and sale of cardbd, paper and pulp.

b. Contanerbard and packaging segmentliaiwan

Manufactureand sad of pger fa cardboard cases, coloredsesand food containers.

c. Containerboard and packaging sesntin mainland China

Manufacture and sale of paper fordiaward cases.

d. Consumer prduct ssgment

Manufacture and salef tissue paper, n&ms ard detegents.

e. Special materials sagent

Manufacture and sale of SERtyrene butadiene rubber) late
The accounting policies of each segment are the sani®ses accounting pigies stagd in Note 4. The
performance ofegments is measuretlinconme aftertax. Revenue and profit betwesegmets have been

adjusted; thes adjustments include the elimaiion of intrasegment transactions to reconcile the segmen
information with hat reporéd for the Group as a whole.
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Segrent Total Assets

Septembe 30, December 31, Septembe 30,

2022 2021 2021

Segment assets
Business unibf pulp and fine paper $ 35,117,379 $ 33968,456 $ 33,985626
Businesaunit of containerboard and packaging

Taiwan 23,124,203 22,018519 20,899821
Business uniof contairerboard and packaging

mainland China 21,500275 22810564 22067879
Business unit of consumer prodsac 7,986,183 7,943,667 8,391,757
Businessunit of special materials 6,521,910 8,731,610 8,482,438
Other segments 87,424,214 83,407,148 79,977790
Adjustmentand eimination (41,02 ,40) (42,445,00) (41375,226)
Conglidated ttal assets $ 140,661,715 $ 136434264 $ 132,43,086

Geographical Information
The Group opetes in two principal geogphical areas Taiwan and rainland China.

T he Grrevenpedfrom continugp operdions from external custoss by lo@tion of operations and
information about its noourrent assets byctation of assets were detailed below.

Revenue from External

Customers
For the Nine Months Ended Non-current Asses
September 30 September 30, December 31, Septenber 30,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2021
Taiwan $ 30,251718 $ 34,027,142 $ 37,805741 $ 36894,374 $ 36,220,269
MainlandChina 20,364,901 20,695,378 16,548,142 16962,863 16,977,011
Others 9,669,663 8,928,593 3,501,786 3,146569 3,103,936

$ 60,286,282 $ 63,651,113 $ 57855669 $ 57,003,86 $ 56,301,216

Information about Major Customers

No single customer contributed 10% or moretoGeo u p 6 s r &hl2e28 ak202. or b o
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

DIAGRAM OF INVESTMENT STRUCTURE
SEPTEMBER 30,2022

TABLE 1

YFY Inc.

I I I [ [ [
59.1% 18.v9% 50.v9% l 57.8% 48% 49.7%
v v 4 A
YEY Yuen Foong Yu ] YEY Paradi Yuen Yan Paper YFY YFY Effion v Fid ‘| T YFY C‘orporate S ‘Y' v ) ¥ YEY ‘GI bal Susta:nable
Consumer Union Paper aradigm g p ) ] Chung Hwa ide I_S Advi 2 an I!Tg Shin Foong China Color obal YEY Japan Carbohydrat
Development (-1.990~ |€4.1%—| Investment Co., [0.07%| Container Co., Packaging International Enertech Co., visory Specialty and inti p arvonyorate
Products Co., Pulp Solutions Enterprise Printing Co., Investment
Corp. Lid Ltd . Services Co., Applied Materials Co., Ltd. Innovation Co.,
Corp. Ltd. : : Inc. B.V. Ltd. Corporation Co., Ltd L, Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd Ltd. B.V. ' Ltd.
A
6.4% J ‘
: ‘ .55%
onoen | | 650 | Fwarens ain oo Bl
L 0 .5% ) -
0.15%, (Cayman) Co., Inc\:lgstrl_rzﬁnt YEY Capital Tradér;% Sdn. YEY RFID ATrézcm;ng
Ltd. - . Holdings A : Technologies (Caymal?)y
T o Corp. Hwa Fong Co., Ltd. Co. Ltd.
-15% ‘ ‘ ¢ Investment \ ¢ ¢
0.7% 0.03% Co., Ltd. cHP
. YFY (Shanghai) - | 83.7% veon
v \ A 2 Financial i '”te"ga\‘/t'lona Technologies YFY RFID
Chung Hwa Livebricks YFY Biotech Pek Crown Servll_zl:ss Co., Cor(pora)tion Co.. Ltd. Co. Limited
0.1% > Pulp Inc Management Paper Co., |«66.8%; : s "
Corporation - Co., Ltd. enovella 0,
P I Ltd. Renewables Inc. ‘ I 99.98%
60% 20.2% l Arizon RFID
Guargdone v YFY Jupiter Technology
Shenzhen Dingfung Pulp E?:Ofg:g Syntax (BVI) Inc. Co,, Ltd.
85% Jinglun Paper & Paper Co., [06.3% Foregtry go Communication
V - FV - A v v Co., Ltd. Ltd Lid " (H.K.) Limited i i
uen Foong Yu - N
EverlGrowing Consumer YFY Consumer Yuen Foong YFY Cayman YFY. . K Y
BicﬁgZI:Lgté)JreLtd 'np"fgll—';c:“ Products, Co. shop Co. L. Co., Ld. (PB?/(i;(?:gmg Xinf:ﬁgglg%een Guizhou Yuan ¢erlczl1c’:0'l‘_‘;)':|izs Teclrnecjg ies :
- Ltd. e orp. 40% 13.59 67% P Fung Forestry 9 9 Arizon JAPAN
Limited Technology Co., - 9276 Co. Ltd (Hong Kong) (Yangzhou) Co.. Ltd
Ltd. ‘ 0~ k. Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. R
\ \ \ |
91% i 60% 58.3% 99% 1%
N v v v v
Hwa Fong YFY Paper Yuen Foong Yu YEY Bi I - +
YFY Yuen Foong Paper Mfg. YFY Blue Economy 10pulp Jupiter Prestige YFY Jupiter YFY Jupiter YFY Jupiter Mobius105 YFY Jupiter
Investment Shop (HK) (Hong Kong) (Jiangyin) Mauritius N\a{\ural I:eesogrce Technology Group Holding s Limited US. 1o Malaysia |«1%- i | 99%! Indonesia, PT
Co., Ltd. Himited Co., Ltd Co., Ltd. corp. e < Limited Limited e Sdn. Bhd. : PMA
1% —— 999
]
i i i 82.5%
v A A
70% Jupiter Prestige Jupiter Prestige Jupiter Prestige ! YFY_ Jupiter YFY Jupiter Jupiter Vietnam
v h 4 Group Australia Group North Group Europe OEaI.?F;M Brasnpd?sCUI:/LC Mexico,S.de (Shenzhen) Company
YFY Family Yuen Foong Yu . : Pty Ltd America Inc. Limited imite ! Ltd. Limited
care Consumer Willpower Packagin
(Kunshan) Products Industries i ‘
Co.. Ltd. (Yangﬂl‘;)lu) Co., Ltd. Company Limited 80%
+ A A4 l + YFY Jupit
v i i v Opal BPM aprer
A : : Supply Chain
Jupiter Prestige : Opal BPM Kunshan YFY PPy
Yuen Foong Yu Yuen Foong Yu YFY YFY YFY Paper YFY Packaging YFY Paper Contrast LLC Group Asia India Consulting Jupiter Green Management
Paper Enterprise Paper Enterprise Packaging Packaging Enterprise (Yangzhou) Enterprise Limited F_)l”l\{ate Limited Packaging Ltd. (Shi:f:esn)
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Note d100% of Ownership, Unless Otherwise Stated.
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARI ES

FINANCING PROVIDED TO OTHERS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(In Thousands of New Tawan Dollars)

TABLE 2

Actual Interest Business Allowance for Collateral Financing Limit Aggregate
N Financial Statement | Related |Highest Balance . Borrowing Nature of - Reasons for . for Each Financing
0. Lender Borrower A - Ending Balance Rate - f Transaction - ) Impairment S Note
ccount Party for the Period Amount o Financing Short-term Financing Iltem Value Borrower Limits
(%) Amounts Loss
(Note 2 (Note 1) (Note 1)
1 |YFY Global Investment B.V. |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivableBom Yes $ 2074210 | $ 1,878222 | $ 187822 250 [Shortterm | $ - |Financing for working| $ - - $ $ 14,8586 | $ 14,058,586 -
Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivablefom Yes 491,915 491,915 313,037 2.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 14,058586 14,058,58 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing captal requirements
2 |YFY International B.V. YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 5,538068 4,376,928 4,376,928 250 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 32,537,020 32,537020 -
Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivalds from| Yes 225,458 - - - Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 32,537,020 32,5%,020 -
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requiements
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) [Other receivables frof  Yes 2,464,496 2,464,4% 2,464,496 250 |Shat-term - |Financing for working - - 32,537,020 32,537,020 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 313406 - - - Shortterm - |Financing ér working - - 32,537,@0 32,537020 -
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fror  Yes 221,640 89,439 89439 3.75 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 32,537,020 32,537020 -
(Dongguan)Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital rguirements
YFY Paper Eterprise Other receigbles from| Yes 162,905 74,905 74,905 3.75 |Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 32,537,020 32,537,020 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 155,566 31304 31,304 3.75 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 32,537,020 32,537,020 -
(Zhongshan) @., Ltd. related @rties financing capitalrequirements
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivales from| Yes 63,128 62,607 62,607 3.75 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 32,537,092 32,537,@0 -
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY PaperEnterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 87,3M - - - Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 32,537,220 32,537,020 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. related pares financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron]  Yes 116336 - - - Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 32,537,0D 32,537020 -
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fra Yes 135,275 134,159 134,159 3.75 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 6,507,404 6,507,404 -
(Guangzhou) 6., Ltd. related parés financing capital requirerents
3 |YFY Paper Enterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 54,322 36,974 8 3.25 Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 36978 147,911 -
(Guangzhou) Cg Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables frorf  Yes 54,322 36,974 26381 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 36,978 147,911 -
Invesment Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capital requiements
4 |YFY Paper Enterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Othe receivables fron]  Yes 630,213 441,154 121,552 3.25 Shortterm - |Finanéng for working - - 882,313 882,313 -
(Kunshan) Co., td. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables frorf  Yes 630,213 441,154 17,502 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 882,313 882,313 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capitd requirements
5 |YFY Paper Enterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Otherreceivables fron]  Yes 356,128 254,669 27 325 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 509,343 509,343 -
(Xiamen Co., Ltd. Co., Ld. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Packaging (Yangzhqu |Otherreceivables fron] Yes 356,128 254,660 36505 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 509,343 509,343 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing captal requirementd
6 |YFY PaperEnterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 1,103,078 438,426 165,973 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 876859 876,859 -
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd. Co.,Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY PackagingYangzhou) |Other receigbles from| Yes 1,103078 438426 39,669 3.5 Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 876,859 876859 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
7 |YFY Paper Entgrise YFY Paper Mfg. (\angzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 551,027 433,610 134,890 325 Shorttem - |Financing for working - - 867,227 867,227 -
(Nanjing) Co, Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronj  Yes 551,027 433610 2 3.25 Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 867,227 867,227 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
8 |YFY Paper Hterprise YFY Paper Mfg.(Yangzhou) |Other receivablesdm Yes 826,494 289282 215,766 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 578,564 578564 -
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 826494 289282 26,572 325 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 578,564 578564 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 202,912 - - - Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 578,564 578564 -
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd. relaed parties financing capital requiements
(Continued)
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Actual Interest Business Allowance for Collateral Financing Limit Aggregate
N Financial Statement | Related |Highest Balance . Borrowing Nature of - Reasons for i for Each Financing
o. Lender Borrower A - Ending Balance Rate - . Transaction : ) Impairment - Note
ccount Party for the Period Amount Financing Short-term Financing Item Value Borrower Limits
(%) Amounts Loss
(Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 1)
9 |YFY Paper Enterprise (Tigin) |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivabefrom| Yes $ 904328 | $ 412972 | $ 98,387 3.5 [Shotterm | $ - |Financing for working| $ - - $ $ 82598 | $ 825948 -
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packajing (Yangzhou) |[Other receivables fronf  Yes 904,328 412,92 72,458 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 825,948 825,948 -
Investment Co., Ltd. relatal parties financing capital requirement
10 |YFY Paper Eterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivatds from|  Yes 1,109,416 405,750 337492 3.5 Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 811,499 811,499 -
(Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. Co.,Ltd. related paies financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yagzhou) |Other receivables fronf  Yes 1,109416 405,750 6,421 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 811,499 811,499 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related partie financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterpge Other eceivables fron]  Yes 202912 - - - Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 811,499 811,499 -
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
11 |YFY Parer Enterprise (SuzhoyYFY PgerMfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivhles from| Yes 273814 246,28 2 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 493,865 493,865 -
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables frorf  Yes 273,814 246,928 70,287 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 493,865 493865 -
Investment ©., Ltd. related parts financing capital requirement
12 |YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) [Other recé/ables from| Yes 2,705,491 2,683174 2,398 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 11,462,561 11,48 561 -
Investment Cq.Ltd. Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Mfg. Yangzhou) |Other receivales from| Yes 2,705,449 2,683,174 2,513585 3.50 Shortterm - |Finarting for working - - 11462561 11,462,561 -
Co., Ltd. related parties finandng capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 450,95 447,196 32,592 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 11,4@,561 11,462,561 -
(Shanghai) Ca.Ltd. related parties financing capital requiremest
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivhles from| Yes 450,915 44719 84,215 350 |Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 11,462 561 11462561 -
(Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. related pdies financing capital requirement
YFY PaperEnterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 3.50 |Shot-term - |Financing for working - - 11,482,561 11,462,561 -
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. related paies financing capital requiements
YFY Paper Enterprise Otherreceivables fron]  Yes 450,915 447196 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 11462,561 11,462,561 -
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. related pdies financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receiables from|  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 11,462,561 11,462,561 -
(Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital equirements|
YFY Paper Enterprise Other reeivables from|  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financingfor working - - 11,482,561 11,462,564 -
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirerants
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 11,462,%1 11462,56 -
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requiements
YFY Paper Enterprise Other recevables from|  Yes 450,915 447196 429,568 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - 11,462,561 11,462,561 -
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron|  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 11,462,561 11,462,561 -
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Entgprise Other receiables from|  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 11,462,561 11,462561 -
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Otherreceivables fron|  Yes 676,373 670,794 258,823 3.50 Short-term - |Financing br working - - 11,462561 11,462,561 -
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd related parties financing capital requiremets
Guangdong Dingfung Pulp &|Other receivables fron  Yes 112,729 111,799 - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 11,462,561 11,462,561 -
Paper Co.l.td. related parties financing capital requirement:
Shenzhen Jinglun Paper Co.|Other receivables fror  Yes 112,729 111,79 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing br working - - 11,462 561 11462561 -
Ltd. related parties financing capital regirements
YFY Jupiter (Shenzhen) Ltd. |Other receivables frorf  Yes 112,29 111,99 - 350 |Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 11,462,561 11,462561 -
related parties financing capital requiremas
Kunshan YFY Jupiter Gen |Other receivables fronl  Yes 112,78 111,799 - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 11,462561 11,462,561 -
Packaging Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Jupite Sypply Chain Other receivables fron  Yes 112729 111,799 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 11462561 11,462,561 -
Management Services relatedparties financing capital requirement
(Shenzlen) Limited
YFY Paper Ergrprise Other receivables fron  Yes 450,915 447,196 - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 573,128 2,292512 -
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirementd
13 |YFY Paper Enterprise YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronf  Yes 478,489 374,549 37 325 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 749103 749,103 -
(Shangpai) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. relatal parties financing capital regirements
YFY Packaging Yangzlou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 478489 374,549 51 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 749,103 749,103 -
Investment Co., Ltd related parties financing capital requirement
14 |YFY Paper Enterpris@liaxing) |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronf  Yes 119,047 101,053 3 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for workig - - 202,112 202,112 -
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Packaging (Yagzhoy |Other receivables fron  Yes 119047 101,053 1,316 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for woking - - 202,112 202,112 -
Investment Co., Ltd related parties financing capital requirement
(Continued)
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(Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 1)
15 |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yanghou) |YFY Paper Enterprise Other receiables from|  Yes $ 426346 | $ - - 3,50 [Shortterm | $ - |Financing for working| $ - - $ $ - - -
Co., Ltd. (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. relaed paties financing capitalrequirements
YFY Pape Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 426,346 - - 3.50 |Shot-term - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Otherreceivablesrom Yes 426346 - - 3.50 |Shat-term - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirements
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receiables from|  Yes 426,346 - - 3.50 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capitl requirementg
YFY PapelEnterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 426,346 - - 350 Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - - - -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Otherreceivables from| Yes 213173 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing fo working - - - - -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requiremes
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 213,173 - - 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
Investment Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 426,346 - - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Zhongshan) Co., @t related parties financing capitd requirements
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fror  Yes 426,346 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. related pdies financing capital requirement
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivables fron  Yes 426346 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Kunghan) Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Other recevables from|  Yes 426,316 - - 3.50 |Short-term - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Qingdao) ®., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receimbles from| Yes 426,346 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing captal requirements
Shenzhen JinglufPaper Co., |Other receigbles from| Yes 21,317 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financig for working - - - - -
Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
Yuen Foong Yu Blue Econon{Other receivables frorf  Yes 21,317 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing forworking - - - - -
Natural Resource related parties financing capital requremens
(Yangzhou)Co., Ltd.
YFY Jupiter (Shenzhen) Ltd. |Other receivatds from| Yes 21,317 - - 350 |Shortterm - |Financing br working - - - - -
related parties financing capital requiements
Kunshan YFY Jupiter Green |Other receivables fror  Yes 21,317 - - 350 |Shot-term - |Financing for working - - - - -
Packaging Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
YFY Jupiter Suply Chain Other receivalas from Yes 21,317 - - 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
Management Services related parties financing capital requiremest
(Shenzhen) Limited
Guanglong Dingfung Pulp & |Othe receivabls from Yes 426,356 - - 3.50 Short-term - |Financhg for working - - - - -
Paper Co.l-td. related parties financing capital requirerants
YFY Paper Enterprise Other receivhles from| Yes 426 346 - - 350 |[Shortterm - |Financing fo working - - - - -
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd. related parties financing captal requirements
YFY Paper Mfg. (Jiangyin) |Other receivables fron| Yes 21,317 - - 350 Short-term - |Financing for working - - - - -
Co., Ltd relatedparties financing capital requirement:
YFY Pgper Enterprise Other receivables fronl  Yes 21,317 - - 350 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - - - -
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capital requirements
16 |Yuen Foong Yu Blue Econom|YFY Paper Mfg. Yangzhou) |Other receivablesédm Yes 104,824 103,98 103,352 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 207,27 207,927 -
Natural Resouce (Yangzhoy Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
Co., Ltd.
17 |YFY Jupiter (Shenzhen) Ltd. |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronf  Yes 309,604 245269 - 325 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 490,539 490,539 -
Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronj Yes 247 309 245269 7,553 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 490,89 490,539 -
Investment Co., Ltd. relatedparties financing capital requirement
18 |Kunshan YFYJupiter Green |YFY Paper Mfg (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fronf  Yes 109525 62,652 - 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 125,304 125,304 -
Packaging Ltd. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 63173 62,652 58,36 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for verking - - 125,304 125,304 -
Investment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
19 |YFY Jupiter Supply Chain YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 76,313 75,83 - 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 151,375 151,375 -
Management Services Co., Ltd. relaied parties financing capital rguirements|
(Shenzhen) Limited YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivables fron  Yes 76,313 75,68 36,214 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 151,375 151,35 -
Invesment Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital rguirements|
20 |Hwa Fong Paper (Hong Kong]YFY Internatbnal B.V. Other receivables fron  Yes 46,48 35,878 35,878 150 Shortterm - |Financing for woking - - 96,704 96,704 -
Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement:
(Continued)
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21 |YFY Jupiter Limited YFY Jupiter US, Inc. Other eceivables from| Yes $ 131074 $ 131074 | $ 131074 | 1.60-5.80 [Shortterm | $ - |Financhg for working | $ - - $ $ 3211 | $ 321,150 -
related partes financing capital requirement
22 |Mobius105 Ltd. YFY Jupiter US, Inc. Otherreceivablesfrom Yes 57,150 57,150 57,150 | 2.40-5.80 |Shortterm - |Financing for workng - - 698,590 698,590 -
related parties financing capital requirement
23 |Jupiter Pretige Group HoldinggYFY Jupite (BVI) Inc. Other reeivalles from| Yes 29,304 28,424 28,424 1.30 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 132,483 132,83 -
Limited related parties financing capital requirenents
24 |Guangdog Dingfung Pulp & |YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) |Other receivalgs from| Yes 459122 455,335 111,86 3.25 |Shortterm - |Finanéng for working - - 462446 1,849,783 -
Paper Co.l.td. Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |Other receivalds from| Yes 459,122 455,335 - 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 462,446 1,849783 -
Investmen Co., Ltd related parties financing capital equirements|
25 |CHP International (BVI) Zhaajing Dingfung Forestry |Other receivables fronf  Yes 349250 349,250 349,29 | 1.50-1.80 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 2,178,664 2,178654 -
Corpaation Co., Ltd. related partis financing capital requirement:
Shenzhen Jingh PagerCo., |Other receivables fron  Yes 189,384 107,27 107,327 3.50 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 2,178,654 2,178654 -
Ltd. related parts financing capitd requirements
Guangdong Dingfung Pulp &|Other receivables from  Yes 1,154,313 885,447 885,447 | 3.00-3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 2,178,664 2,178,654 -
Paper Co., Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
26 |Shenzhen Jinglun Paper Co., |YFY Paper Mfg.(Yangzhou) [Other receivableom Yes 14,%7 13,541 5,102 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for workigy - - 13,543 54,173 -
Ltd. Co., Ld. relaed parties financing capital requirement
YFY Packaging (Yangzhou) |[Otherreceivables fron] Yes 13,654 13,541 - 3.25 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 13,543 54,13 -
Invegment Co., td. related parties financing capital requirement
27 |Yuen Foong Yu Consumer |YFY Investnent Co., Ltd. Other receivables fron  Yes 294,750 - - - Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 6,908,531 6,908,381 -
Products Investment Limite: relatedparties financing capital requiements
YFY Investment Co., Ltd. Other reeivables from  Yes 445,800 - - - Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 6,908531 6,908,531 -
relatedparties financhg capital requirement:
YFY Investment Co., Ltd. Other receivables fron  Yes 148,600 - - - Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 6,908531 6,908,531 -
related parties finandng capital requiremes
28 |YFY Family Care (Kunshan) [YFY Investment Co., Ltd. Other receivables fron  Yes 281,170 278,850 118,609 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 570,933 570,933 -
Co., Ltd. related partie financing capitl requirements
29 |Yuen Foong Yu Consumer |YFY Investment Co., Ltd. Otherreceivables fron|  Yes 1,161,101 1,151,523 109284 3.25 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 2,424,759 2,424,759 -
Producsts (Yangzhou) Co., related parties financhg cgpital requirements
Ltd.
30 |YFY Investment Co., Ltd. YFY Family Care (Kunshan) |Other receivbles from| Yes 2,303386 2,241,362 - 350 Short-term - |Financing for working - - 4,482725 4,482,725 -
Co., Ltd. relaed partes financing capital requirenents
Yuen Foong Yu Consumer [Other receiables from|  Yes 2,303,3% 2,241,362 - 3,50 |[Shorttem - |Financing for working - - 4482725 4,482,725 -
Products (Yangzhou) Co., | related parties financing capital requirement
Ltd.
31 |YFY Packaging Inc. YFY Cayman Co., Ltd. Other receivables fron  Yes 55,650 - - - Shortterm - |Financig for working - - 2,672559 2,672,559 -
relatedparties financing capital requirement:
32 |Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. YFY Paradigm Investment C(Other receivables fronf  Yes 378000 194,000 194,000 090 |Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 194,847 194,847 -
Ltd. related parties financing capital requirement
33 |YFY Japan Co., Ltd. YFY International B.V. Other receivables fron  Yes 52,954 44,020 44020 0.75 Shortterm - |Financing for working - - 202,022 202022 -
relaied parties financing capital requirement
34 |San Ying Enterprise Co., Ltd. |YFY Paradigm Investment C(Other receivales from| Yes 40,000 40,000 40,00 0.90 |Shot-tem - |Financing for working - - 41,042 41,042 -
Ltd. related pdies financing capital requiremets
Note 1: a. Basedon the provision of loansuk to business relationships, the total amaf loans should not exceed40 o f t hsenetdqety ah ¢he @ost current financial statements, and the amount of individual loaits rebtoexced thetotal puchases and saéaween the lender and thmrrower in the prior year.
According to he provison of shortterm loanspoth individualloanrs and t ot al l oans should not exceedinahda¥steanens. inlsenmang acdoadingd tbe provision oébgsinesteglings and shdteem fimanang, bathuagregaeans and individual loanshould not exeed
80% of the |l enderds net equity on the most current financi al statement s.
b. YFY | nholly-émedfareign subsidiaries are not Bject to the foregoing 40%nd 80% limitation when they provide finang with each other. For subsidies of YFY Inc,ift he | oan is for t he bor r gemefinadcng, the amountefisascingshoutmot exeesd twice oftlee n d @0 d $
net equity on thenog current financial statements.
Note 2  In preparing the consolidated financial statensethetransation has been elimated.

(Concluded)
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ENDORSEMENTS/GUARANTEES PROVIDED
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 3

Endorsee/Guarantee Li mits on Maximum Ratio of
Outstanding Accumulated Endorsement/ | Endorsemen{ | Endorsement/
Endorsement/ Amount Amount Aggregate . . .
. Endorsement/ Actual Endorsement/ Guarantee GivernlGuarantee GiverlGuarantee Given
Guarantee Givenl  Endorsed/ . Endorsed/ Endor sement/ A
No. Endorser/Guarantor . . Guarantee at thel  Borrowing Guarantee to Ne L by Parent on | by Subsidiaries| on Behalf of
Name Relationship on Behalf of Guaranteed Guaranteed by L Guarantee Limit o
. End of the Amount Equity in the Behalf of on Betlalf of Companies in
Each Party During the - Collaterals . - (Note 2) I - .
: Period Latest Financial Subsidiaries Parent Mainland China
(Note 1) Period
Statements(%)
Endorsemenguarantee
1 |YFYlInc. YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) &€, Ltd. Note 3 a. $ 78,6%,925 | $ 261084 | $ 2,338,820 409,831 | $ - 420 $ 104,927,900 Yes No Yes
YFY Packaging'Yangzhou) Invesnent Co., itd. Note 3 a. 78,695,925 1,0821% 1,073,270 - - 193 104,927,900 Yes No Yes
2 |Willpower Industries Ltd. Yuen Foongru Pger Enterprise (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 2,563,271 762000 762,000 140,54 - 40.72 3,417,696 Yes No No
Yuen Foong Yu Paper Enterprise (Dong Nai) Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 2,563,271 857,50 857,250 211,713 - 4581 3,417,696 Yes No No
Yuen Foong Yu Paper Enterprise (Vietham) Binh Duong Gd., Note 3 a. 2,563,271 1,143,000 1,143000 506599 - 61.07 3,4176% Yes No No
Vinh Phu Packing And Priimtg Compay Limited Note 3 b. 170885 83,348 - - - - 170,885 No No No
3 |Winsong Packaging Iregstment Company YFY Packagilg (Ha Nam) Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 615,821 539,750 539,750 363,480 - 97.34 821094 Yes No No
Limited YFY Packaging Thai Binh Co., dt Note 3 a. 615821 95,50 95,250 16,536 - 17.18 821,094 Yes No No
Credit line (Note 4)
1 |YFYlInc. YFY Development Corp. Note 3 a. 78,695,925 3,900,000 3,450,000 1,490,000 6.19 104,927,9M0 No No No
YFY Paradigm Investment Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 78,695,925 2,37Q000 2,370,000 385,000 - 425 104,927,900 No No No
YFY International BV. Note 3 a. 78,695925 3,173,813 3,030,500 256412 - 544 104,927,900 No No No
YFY Paper Mfg. (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 78,695925 450,915 268317 - - 048 104,927,900 No No No
YFY Global Investment B.V. Note 3 a. 78,695925 1,460,500 1,460,5@ 33,48 - 2.62 104,927,900 No No No
YFY Jupiter Limited Note 3 a. 78,695,925 410500 410,500 157,162 - 0.74 104,927,900 No No No
YFY Jupiter (BVI) Inc. Note 3 a. 78,695,225 476,250 476,250 24,130 - 0.85 104,927,900 No No No
Mobius105 Ltd. Note 3 a 78,695,925 95,250 95,250 95,250 - 0.17 104,927,900 No No No
2 |Chung Hwa PUp Corporation CHP International (BVI) Corporation Note 3 a. 22,986,638 730,250 730,250 - - 462 30,648,850 No No No
Hwa Fonglnvestment Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 22986638 130,000 130,00 32,500 - 0.82 30,648,850 No No No
3 |YFY Packaging Inc. YFY Cayman Co., Ltd. Note 3 a. 10,022,099 508000 508,000 - - 7.47 13,3@,798 No No No
Note 1: Repesents 150% of the net efyubn the most current financial sanents, exept Vinh Phu Packaging And Printing Company Limited represents 10% of net equity of Willpowerrilesllsti.on the most current finaratistatements
Note 2:  Represents 200%f the net equity on the moatircent financial statements, excéfihh Phu Pakaging And Printing Company Limited represents 10% of net equity of Willpower Industries Ltd. amo#ieurent financial statements.
Note 3:  The elationships between the gumtor and the guarantee arefallows:
a. Subsidiary.
b. Assocate.
Note 4  In accordance with regulations, tbeedit lines jointly issued by the Company are disclosed.
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE S ECURITIE S HELD
SEPTEMBER 30,2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

TABLE 4

Relationship September 302022
. » with the . : . Percentage
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Marketable ®curities Holdi Financial Statement Acocount Number of Carrying of . Note
olding . Fair Value
Company Shares Amount Ownership
(%)
YFY Inc. Benefidary certificates

SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financial assets at fair value through prafi 1,445,041 | $ 20,36 - $ 20,361
loss

Ordinary shares

SinoPac Financial Holdgs Co., Ltd. - Non-current financiahssets atafr value through 480,699.993 8,316,110 42 8,316,110
other comprehensive income

TaiGen Bopharmaeuticals Holdings Ltd. Note 1  |Non-currert financial assets at fair value through 97,502,590 1,486,956 136 1,486,914
other comprehenge income

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Lined - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 7,464,617 791249 0.8 791,249
other compehensive income

Medeon Biodesign, Inc. - Noncurrent fnancial assets at fair value through 2,025078 127,38 2.3 127,377
other compehensive income

Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Note 1 |Non-currentfinancial assets at fair value through 30,768,597 4,475160 3.0 4,475,160
othercomprehensive income

Canada Investment dibevelopmenCo., Ltd. Note 1  |Noncurrent financial agts at fair value through 20,826,000 215,839 12.9 215839
other comprehensive income

KHL IB VentureCapital Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial ssets atair value through 12,443,88 170,438 14.9 170438
other comprehengé income

FuHwa Development Enterprise Co., Ltd. Note 1 |Non-current fnancialassets at fair value through 4.200,000 82,171 14.0 82,171
other compehersive income

Synmax Biochemical Co., Ltd. Note 1  |Noncurrentfinancial assets at famalue through 5,999,371 75444 139 75,444
othercomprehensive income

Shin Taiwan Kubota Co., Ltd. Note 1 |Non-currentfinancial assets at fair value through 5,612 43,7% 55 43,796
other comprehasive income

Universal Investment Co., Ltd. Note 1  |Non-current financial assets at fair value through 5,221,228 38084 3.0 38084
other comprbensiveincome

Taiwan Creative Industry Development Co.,L| Notel |Non-current financial assets airfvalue tlrough 1,600,000 18,1@ 8.0 18,102
other comprehensive income

Yuen Foong Paper Co., Ltd. Note 2  |Non-current financial assets at fair valiireough 544,067 13,064 0.7 13,064
other comprehensive income

Supercell Biotechnolgy Corporatbn (originally - Non-current financial assets at fair value tingb 696,564 6,966 30 6,966

named aSino Cell Technolo@s Ltd) othe comprehensive income

China Trade and Development Corp. - Non-current financial assets at faislue through 377,634 3,403 0.6 3,403

other comprehensiviecome
(Continued)
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Relationship September 302022
. » with the . : . Percentage
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Marketable 8curities . Financial Statement Account Number of Carrying of . Note
Holding : Fair Value
Company Shares Amount Ownership
(%)
YFY Paper Enterprise (Xiamen) Ca.td. Share cetrtificate
Xiamen Taiwange Irvestment Association - Non-current firancial assets at fair value thugh - | RMB 70 - RMB 70
Management Company other canprehensive income thousand thousand
YFY Global InvestmenB.V. Bereficiary certificates
WI HarperINC Fund VII LP - Non-current financial assets at fair valilneough - | US$ 147 0.2 Uss$ 147
other comprehensive ingw@ thousand thousand
Special share
Neutron Innovation (BY) Ltd. Note 1  |Non-current financial assets atiff value through 1,692,250| US$ 2,902 6.5 US$ 2,902
other comprehensive income thousand thousand
Micareo Inc. Note 1  |Non-current financiabssets at fair value through 8,124,999 | US$ 127 19.9 USs$ 127
other comprehensive inow@ thousand thousand
Shin Foong Specialty and AppliddaterialsCo.,|Beneficiary certificées
Ltd. SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financal assets at fair value through profit 4,967,957 70,002 - 70,002
loss
PIMCO GIS Totl Return Bond Funé Class - Current financial assets at faiglue through profit of 218899 76,729 - 76,729
loss
Special share
Cathay Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. - Non-currentfinancial assets at faialue through 2,431,000 143,186 0.3 143,186
othercomprehensive income
Fubon Fhancial Holding Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 2,173,000 130,®7 04 130597
othercomprehensive income
Taishin Financial Holding Co.,tH. - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 2,596000 130,319 0.5 130,319
other compehensive income
Ordinary shares
SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 22,110,064 382,504 0.2 382504
othe conprehensive income
Foangtone Technology Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets fair value through 2,884415 70,135 118 70,135
other compehensive income
China Color Printing Co., Ltd Bereficiary certificates
Jih Sun Money Market Fund - Current financial assets at fair valtlerough profit or 4,147,535 62,349 - 62,349
loss
Prucential Financial Money Market Fund - Current financial assets at fair value through frof 1,565,896 25,106 - 25,106
loss
(Continued)
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. . September30,2022
Relationship
. » with the . : . Percentage
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Marketable Securities Holdi Financial Statement Account Number of Carrying of . Note
olding : Fair Value
Company Shares Amount Ownership
(%)
China Color Printig Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares
China Development Financial Holding - Current financial assets at fair value throuwgher 9,959,081 | $ 127974 0.1 $ 127974
Corporation comprehensive income
China Parcel Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial agss at fair value through 463,917 3,664 10.8 3,664
othea comprehensive income
YFY Development Corp. Ordinary shees
SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. - Current financial assets at fair valuedabgh other 214,412783 3,709,341 19 3,709,341
comprehensive immme
Medeon Biodesign, Inc. - Current financiahssets at fair value through other 612301 38,514 0.7 38,514
compehensivéncome
TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Holdings Ltd. - Noncurrent financial agss at fair value through 3,490,949 53237 0.5 53237
othe comprehensive income
Advance Materials Corporation Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets at fair value thgbu 1,542,258 11,644 1.3 11,644
other comprehensive income
Quan Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. Note 1 Non-current financial assets at fair value through 5,250000 42,649 55 42.649
other canprehensive income
Universal Venture Capital Ingémert Note 1  |Noncurrent financial assets at fair value thgb 5,60Q000 41,625 4.7 41,625
Corporation other comprehensive income
Everterminal Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets at fa@ue thraugh 1,200960 27,702 2.5 27,702
other comprehensive income
YFY Paradigm Inveshent Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares
SinoPa Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. - Current financial assets atif value through other 144,877333 2,506378 1.3 2,506,378
comprehensive tome
Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited - Current financial assets aifaalue tliough other 467,106 49,513 0.1 49,513
comprelersive income
Medeon Biodsign, Inc. - Current financial assets fatir valuethrough other 156804 9,863 0.2 9,863
comprehensive income
Shenés Art Printing - Currentfinancial assets at fair vadthrough other 43109 625 0.1 625
comprehensive income
TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals HoldingsdL - Non-current financial assets at fair valtlgough 17,654,353 269,29 2.5 269,229
other comprehensive income
Foongtor Technology Col.td. Note 1  |Non-current financial assets at famlue through 1,370,730 33,3 5.6 33,330
other comprehensive income
Canada Investment amkvebpment Co., Ltd. Note 1  |Non-current financial assets at fair valireaugh 2,574,000 26677 1.6 26,677
other comprehensiviacome
Fu Hwa Developmentierprise Co., Ltd. - Non-current finantal asset at fair value through 1,050,000 20,543 3.5 20,543
other comprehemg income
Locus Publishing Compmg Note 1  |Non-current financihassets at fair value through 1,402,386 16,199 13.5 16,199
other comprebénsive income
Oversas Invesiment & Development Co., Ltd. - Noncurrent inancial assets at fair value through 1,000,000 9,182 11 9,18
other comprehensive income
(Continued)
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. . Sepember 30,2022
Relationship
. » with the . : . Percentage
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Marketable $curities Holdi Financial Statement Account Number of Carrying of . Note
olding : Fair Value
Company Shares Amount Ownership
(%)
YFY Paradigm Investment Co., Ltd. Supercell Biotechnolgy Corporatior{originally Note 1  |Nonrcurrert financid assets at fair value through 696435 | $ 6,9%4 3.0 $ 6,964
named a Sino Cell Technologies Ltd. other comprehensive income
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation - Non-current financial assets atif value through 2,126 309 - 309
other comprehensiviacome
Churg HwaPulp Corporation Ordinary shares
NTU Innovation & Incubatia Co., Ltd. Note 1 |Non-currer financial assets at fair value through 800,000 - 6.3 -
profit or loss
Groundhog Technologs Inc. - Non-current financial assets at fairlwa through 275,000 - 1.0 -
profit or loss
SinoRac Financial lidings Co., Ltd. - Current fnancial assets at fair value through othery  100,87,420 1,743,960 0.9 1,743,969
comprehensive income
TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Holdings Ltd. - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 17,829,122 271,84 25 271,84
other comprehensiveitome
Medeon Biodesign, Inc. - Non-current financiabssets at fair value through 388,146 24414 0.4 24,414
other canprehensie income
KHL IB Venture Capital Co., Ltd. - Non-current financial assets fair value through 12,443683 170,438 14.9 170,438
other conprehensive income
Direct Insight Inc. - Noncurrent financibassetst fair value through 265,000 3 1.0 3
other comprehensévinmme
Hwa Fong Investment Co., Ltd Ordinary shares
Everest Technology Inc. - Non-current financial assets at fair valilneough 150,000 - 0.2 -
profit or loss
SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd - Current financial assets at fair value through othe 2,418,909 41,847 - 41847
comprehensive immme
YFY Corporate Advisory & Services Co., Ltd.|Beneficiary certificates
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financial agts & fair value through profit o 4406276 62,087 - 62,08
loss
YFY Japan Co.l.td. Ordinary shares
Beautone Japan Co., Ltd. - Non-curren financial assets at fair value thigh 440 | JPY 41678 36.7 JPY 41678
othercomprehensive income thousand thousand
Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. Beneficiary certificées
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financial assg at fair value througprofit or 3,716,611 52,370 - 52,370
loss
Genorella Renewables Inc. Beneficiary certificates
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current fnancial assets at fair value through profit 452,369 6,374 - 6,374
loss
(Continwed)
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Relationship September 302022
, » with the . : . Percentage
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Markdable Securities Holdi Financial Statement Account Number of Carrying of . Note
olding : Fair Value
Company Shares Amount Ownership
(%)
Yeon Techntogies Co, Ltd. Beneficiary certificates
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financial assets at fa@lue through profit o 324058 | $ 4,566 - 4566
loss
Sustainable Carbohydrate InnowattiCo., Ltd. |Beneficiary certifietes
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Currentfinancial assets at fair value through profit 1,071,666 15,101 - 15,101
loss
YFY Biotech Management Co., Ltd. Beneficiary certifiates
SinoPac TWD Money Market Fund - Current financial assets at fair value through prof 2,529,545 35,643 - 35,643
loss
Ordinaryshares
Neuro Sky, Inc. - Noncurrent financial assets at fair value through 48,308,183 - 10.3 -
other comprehensive¢ome
Elixir Pharmaceuticals Inc. - Non-current fnancal assets at fair value through 2,662,558 - 22 -
other comprehensive income
Nereus Pamaceuticals Inc. - Non-current financial assets at fair value through 1,682,602 - 0.9 -
other comprehensive income
ACM Medical Technologiednc. - Non-current financial assets at faialue through 760,000 - 73 -
other @mprehensive income
Arizon RFID Technology Co., it Negotiable certiftates of deposit
ChinaMerchant8ankRMB - Non-current fnancial assets at amortized cost - | RMB 55,000 - RMB 55,000
Largedenomination Certificatef Depost for thousand thousand
Corporate Clients No. 111 in 2P2
Agricultural Bank of China RMB - Non-currentfinancial assets at amortized cost - | RMB 50,000 - RMB 50,000
Largedenominatia Certificate of Deposit for thousand thousand
Corporate Clients NdL89in 2020
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China RM - Non-curren financial assets at amortized cost - | RMB 22,000 - RMB 22,000
Largedenomination Certificate of Depo$or thousand thousand
Comorate Clients Na2 in 2021
Agricultural Bankof China RMB - Non-current financial assets at amortized cost - | RMB 15,000 - RMB 15,000
Largedenomination Certificate of Depos$dr thousand thousand
Corporate Clients No. 017 in 202
Bank of Communication®MB - Non-current financial assets at amned cost - | RMB 13,000 - RMB 13,000
Largedenominatn Certificate of Deposit for thousand thousand
Corporate Clients Nd&5in 2021
Note 1: The investois a member of the board of ditexsor a supensor.
Note 2: A member of the board of directors of tingeéstor.
(Concluded)
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YFY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED O R DISPOSED OF AT COSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$300 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE NINE MONT HS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Unless Stated Otherwise

TABLE 5

Type andName of Financial Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Other Ending Balance
Company Name Marketable Securities Statement| Counterparty Relationship Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount Carrying Gain on Disposa| Adjustments Number of Amount Note
Account Shares Shares Shares Amount Shares
Shin Foong Specialty and Benefciary certificates
Applied Materias Co., Ltd. [Mega Diamond Money Note 1 - - 31,575,236 | $ 400,298 51,29669 | $ 650,000 82,80496 | $ 1,051509 | $ 1,050,000 | $ 1509 | $ (298) -1 8 - -
Market Fund (Note6)
SinoPacTWD Money Note 1 - - 34,899,171 490,236 33,425,000 470,000 63,356,264 891,218 890,000 1,218 (234) 4,967,956 70,002 -
Market Fund (Note6)
Hua Nan Phoenix Mornye Note 1 - - 15,236,099 250170 - - 15,236,099 250,958 250,000 958 170 - - -
Market Fund (Note 6)
Effion Enertech Co., Ltd. Beneficiary certificates
SinoPac TVID Money Notel - - 4,987,494 70,060 12,798,718 180,000 14,069,061 198,000 197,570 430 (120 3,716,611 52370 -
Market Fund
YFY Global Investment B.V. |Ordinary shees
YFY RFID Co. Limited Note 2 |Arizon RFID Subsidiary 25,600,000 US$ 110,416 - - 25,600,000 | US$ 111624 | US$ 108,076 | US$ 3,548 | US$S (2,340 - - | (Note8)
Techrology thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
(Cayman) Co., (Noteb5) (Note 7)
Ltd.
Arizon RFID Technology Note 2 [Notes3and 4 Notes3 and 4 - - 56,244,935 | US$ 111,624 10,300,000 | US$ 25883 | US$ 20,064 | US$ 5819 | US$ (3983) 45,944935 | US$ 87577 | (Note8)
(Cayman) Co., Ltd. Thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
(Note 3) (Note4) (Note5) (Note7)
Arizon RFID Tecimology Ordinary shares
(Cayman) Co., Ltd. YFY RFID Co. Limited Note 2 |Former shareHder |Parent - - 29,584,886 | RMB 822,462 - - - - | RMB 59111 29,584,886 | RMB 881,573 | (Note8)
of YFY RFID company thousand thousand thousand
Co. Limited (Note7)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note6:

Note7:

Note8:

Accownted for acapital surplus

Accounted for as current famcial asets at FVTPL.

Accounted ér asinvestments accounted fosing equity method.

Accounted for again (loss) on financiassets oliabilities at FYTPL.

In preparing the consolidated financial statemehtstransactio has been eliminated.

Including capital surplus, re@inedearnings, exchange differees ortranslaton and sharef profit (loss) of asocides accounted faising equity method, net.
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YFY Global Investment B.V. dispod®f someof its shaes in Arizon RFID Technology (Cayman) Co., Ltth YFY Development Corp., YFY Padigm Investment Col.td., specffic investorsand financial invetors

Arizon RFID Technology (Cayman) Co. issued 5@,984 sharefor YFY Global Investment B.Vand YFY Global Investment B.Vacqiired1 share from YFY RID Co. Limited by cashrom original sharéolders for the organizational mrganization.







